
 

 

 

HEALTH SCRUTINY 

PANEL 
________________________________________________ 

 
Monday, 2 March 2015 at 7.30 p.m. 

 
Committee Room 1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 

Crescent, London, E14 2BG 
 

This meeting is open to the public to attend.  
 

Members:  
Chair: Councillor Asma Begum 
Vice-Chair: Councillor David Edgar 
 
Councillor Danny Hassell, Councillor Suluk Ahmed, Councillor Denise Jones, Councillor 
Mahbub Alam and Councillor Craig Aston 
 
Deputies:  
Councillor Sirajul Islam, Councillor Abdul Mukit MBE, Councillor Rachael Saunders, 
Councillor Chris Chapman, Councillor Julia Dockerill, Councillor Peter Golds, Councillor 
Shah Alam, Councillor Gulam Kibria Choudhury and Councillor Md. Maium Miah 
  
Co-opted Members:  
 David Burbridge (Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Representative) 
Dr Sharmin Shajahan (PhD) (Healthwatch Tower Hamlets) 
 
[The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members] 

 
Contact for further enquiries: 
Antonella Burgio, Democratic Services 
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG 
Tel: 020 7364 4881 
E-mail: Antonella.Burgio@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web: http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 
 

Scan this code for 
an electronic 
agenda  

 

 



 
 
 
 

 

 

Public Information 
Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis.  
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings. 
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page. 

 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

 
Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place  
Blackwall station: Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf  
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda  

     
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned. 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date.  
 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users. 



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

  PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS  

 

1 - 4 
 

  
To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those 
restricting Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 
of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the 
Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

 

2. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION  
 

 
 

2 .1 Barts Health   
 

5 - 40 
 

 To receive: 
a. a presentation on managing winter pressures at RYL  
b. a verbal update on last year’s review of A&E review 

recommendations (scrutiny review circulated for information) 
 

 

2 .2 Tower Hamlets CCG - Update on the community health services 
procurement and engagement activities planned   

 

41 - 54 
 

 To receive an update on community health services procurement and 
engagement activities planned 
 

 

2 .3 Health watch progress update   
 

55 - 120 
 

 To receive an update on: 
a. the paper to the Health & Wellbeing Board, outcomes of the work 

performed by the voluntary sector in the previous year, and  
b. key priorities Healthwatch are working on this year 

 

 

3. ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS 
TO BE URGENT  

 

 
 

 

Next Meeting of the Panel 
The next meeting of the Health Scrutiny Panel will be held on Tuesday, 24 March 
2015 at 7.00 p.m. in Committee Room 1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 
Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.    
 
Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.   
 
Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected. 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website. 
 
Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI). 
 
A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    
 
Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings 
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:- 

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and 
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business. 

 
If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:- 

- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 
or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and  

- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 
decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision  

 
When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.   
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register.  
 
Further advice 
 
For further advice please contact:- 

• Meic Sullivan-Gould, Interim Monitoring Officer, 020 7364 4800 

• John Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services, 020 7364 4204 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Emergency Care at The Royal London

Tower Hamlets Health 

Scrutiny Panel

02 March 2015

A
g
e

n
d
a

 Ite
m

 2
.1

P
a
g
e

 5



Dr Malik Ramadhan – Deputy Group 

Director, ECAM and Clinical Director, 

Emergency Departments

Mrs Deborah Madden – Deputy Director of 

Operations, ECAM and Acting Hospital 

Director, RLH

Barts Health 

Emergency Care update

P
a
g

e
 6



Emergency care at Barts Health

• Three Emergency Departments

• 430,000 attendances in 2013/14

• Average 450 attendances a day at The Royal London

• Major trauma, Neuro-surgical, Stroke Centre at The 

Royal London  – caring for the most seriously ill and 

injured patients across east London and beyond, in 

partnership with London’s Air Ambulance

P
a
g
e

 7



How we are performing

The target for emergency departments is for 95% of patients to be seen and treated within four 

hours of arrival. In keeping with the rest of London, the Trust has faced significant challenges in 

recent months with demand for emergency care. The Trust’s year to date performance is 92.34%

P
a
g

e
 8



Challenges – The Royal London

Key factors currently affecting performance at The Royal 

London:

• Major Trauma and Specialist Tertiary Centre as well as 

a local  A&E and District General Hospital for the local 

population 

• A 14% increase in ED attendances between October 

and January 2015 compared to the same period last 

year

• Repatriation of patients from trauma or specialist 

services can be problematic as hospitals come under 

pressure with regard their bed base

P
a
g
e

 9



Analysis – The Royal London

• Historic year-on-year increase in demand for healthcare 

services 

• Length of stay has increased over the last year, by one 

day on average – primarily elderly patients staying for 

14 days or longer.

• Bed capacity across the site is at a premium, especially 

emergency surgery and general medical beds. Our 

overall bed occupancy is high at 97% on average –

higher than predicted

• Volume of delayed discharge patients has remains 

around the same level since October 2014.  

Approximately double the volume recorded throughout 

Jan – Oct 2014

P
a
g
e

 1
0



What we are doing to address the situation

• We are working with Tower Hamlets CCG to implement an 

Operational Resilience programme which includes additional 

support to A&E capacity and funding of escalation beds and 

community schemes.

• Admission avoidance schemes, especially for the frail elderly, 

adopting a multi-disciplinary approach

• Increased Consultant and Middle Grade input in A&E to all sites at 

night 7 days a week

• Improved processes to enable medically fit patients to leave the 

hospital – including spot purchasing of nursing home beds

• Daily review of medically fit patients on all sites with CCG Director 

level support, reducing the number of DTOCs

• Senior Manager Navigator remaining on site into the night to 

support flow.

P
a
g
e

 1
1



Stepping into the Future

• Step to the Future programme at RLH (w/c 26th Jan), WXH (w/c 

9th Feb) and NUH (w/c 2nd March) with increased support to 

generate a step change in performance

• Eight-day intensive programme working with GPs, CCGs, the 

Local Authority, Community, Health Services, the ambulance 

service and all staff to find ways to help patient flow, facilitate 

discharge and treat patients more safely.

• The key findings and lessons learned from Stepping into the 

Future at The Royal London will be collated and combined with 

relevant learning from the programme at WX site.

• Key areas include: The ‘golden' discharge initiative, reducing 

delays or cancellations in operating procedures to ease flow and 

maximising the appropriate use of the Discharge Lounge.

P
a
g
e

 1
2



Andrew Attfield, Associate Director of 

Public Health

Community works for Health 

update

P
a
g
e

 1
3



Our commitment to local employment

• As part of the outcome from a review on A&E services in 2014, 

Tower Hamlets HOSC recommended that the council and Barts 

Health work together on ‘recruiting from the local community, and 

working with Higher Education institutions to train doctors and 

other medical practitioners from a diverse range of backgrounds 

and with roots in the local area’

• Barts Health already has a number of routes to employment for 

local people across specialities in the Trust through the work of our 

well-established pathway, Community Works for Health and other 

NHS recruitment channels.

P
a
g
e

 1
4



Local employment initiatives

• Between January and December 2014, 479 local people recruited from Tower 

Hamlets, 170 in entry level jobs.

• 38 residents recruited as apprentices in a range of roles, including clinical and non-

clinical roles

• Eight residents recruited in to Healthcare Assistant trainees roles in Outpatients

• Partnerships with local organisations Skillsmatch, Osmani Trust, Poplar HARCA 

and East End Community Foundation

• 205 Flags projects – offering range of support including health awareness and work 

placements to local residents

• NHS Community Awards event in November 2014

• Barts Health Summer School took place in July 2014 and attracted over 20 

students from Mulberry School to a range of careers workshops where the students 

heard from healthcare professionals and engaged in practical training in infection 

control and manual handling

• Careers events held at Morpeth, Central Foundation and Bow Schools

P
a
g
e

 1
5



P
a
g
e

 1
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



1 

�

��������	
���
����
���

�	
���
�������������		���
���
��

���
��
	����������
��	����
�

����
���������
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

��
��
� �
������������
���������

�������!"#$�
�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 17



2 

%�
��
����

�

� � � � � � � � � � �����

�

�

�	&
��������
��� � � � � � � � '� � �

� � � � �

� � � � � � �����

%���
(����
���
�� � � � � � � � $�

�

� � � � � � � � � � � �

��	����
�����
��� � � � � � � � )�

�

�

 �	&�
��
��� � � � � � � � � *�

�

�

+����
���
��,����������� � � � � � � -�

�

�

��������.����
�����	��
�� � � � � � � /�

�

�

����
����������
��������	���	�
��0�� � � � � #"�

�

�

%�
	�����
��
��
�	����
�����
��� � � � � � #)�

�

�

�11�
��0�#� � � � � � � � � #-�

�

�

�11�
��0�!� � � � � � � � � !#�

� � � � � � � � � � � � �

� �

�

� � � � � � � � � � � �

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 18



3 

#2��	&
���������
���

�

�����������	
��
�����������������

��������
����
��
������������������������������
�
���
������

������
���������

�
���������
�������

���� ������ ���� 
�
�
�������� ��� ���� ����� ��
�� ��������� ����� ����� ������������ ��� ���
���� ���� ������


��������������� ��� ����� 
�
�
��� ��� ������ ����� ��� ������ ���� ��� ������ ���� ����� ����
� ����� ����

��
�
�������
��������
������

�������

�

�������3
��1�%���
4�

���������
���������������
����

�

�������3
��1�,��5�
4�

������ �
�
�����!�"�����������
�

�����������

�

����
���������%��
	��4���5��	�������4�

�
������� ���
#���!���
����
����$������"�������

$����%��������!�&�����������
����
����$������"�������

�

����
���������%��
	��4����	����
���	����%�
���
��6���5��
���

����
��������'���
�����"����'�������������������"�������

�

 �
����������

(����
��
'�����������
���������������)����������*�����
�

�
�*��������������!������������
����
���
�)��
����+�*���������

�
�����,�����!���+���,�����-�"��
�������
����
��

�

%��
�	���%��������
�
��3
��1��
��7
��
��%�
�� ��
���73%��

�
�����)��
�������!�����
��������
�"������������������������������	
��
�

�������*����'�,������
��
�����
��������

.�
������$�������!��	�	���
����� ��
��,������
�/
�������
���

&
�����*����
�!���	���
��+���
����
���
�$�
��
������0�1�����+�

�

����
��������4�������6��	��

������� �
����!���
����
����"�����������

�

����
���������%��
	��4�+
������
����������

����
�&����!��
����+-�$����+�����$�
��
������2�����
��

��
��� �

�!������
���
����+-�$����+�����$�
��
������2�����
��

�

���

� �

Page 19



4 

!2�%���
(��8�
���
���

�

&��������������������������
�����3"���������������������
�
��������������������
��������
������������

&0)���
���������������+���,�����-��������
������
�������������
������������������
���������

��
����������+�����
��

�
������������������
��������

�

������������
���������
�����������1�������
�
�
�����������
����
���������� �
���"������������
�

���������������������-�����������&0)���
�
���������������������������������������
��������������

��
�
���������������
������
�����������������������
����

�

���
��&0)����������������������������������������
��������������
������������+�������%���������������
���
�

��������������&0)����������������������
�����

������������������	$-�������������
+���
�������
������

���
����+���
��������

�

���
�������
������� �
���"����������������������������������
�������������-����&0)������������
�-�

�+��
������-�������
��������
��
�������������
��
�����

�

%�
��������������
���������+�����

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 20



5 

'2���	����
�����
���

�

�

���������������45�

��������������������������
����
�

�������������

���������������������������������������������

��������+���
�����������
�������
��������

�

���������������65�

�����������������
���������
�����������+����������&0)���
�������������������������

������

����
�

���
+���
����
��������
�����
���������-�������
�
���������


�

������������������

&0)��

�

���������������75�

�����������������������������

��
�������
����������������������-�������+������������������

�����������������
������������+�������+��-�
���������������
��

����
�����3"������&0)���
������

�����������
����������

�

���������������85�

�����������������������
�����������
������� �
���"������3"���
��������
������
��
������

��
�������
�������
������
�������
�������
����������

����
�����&0)���������
����
�����

��
��������

�

���������������95�

����������������:��
���������������
�������
��
�������� �
���"������3"���
������#�����
����
���



�#������������
�����
������
���������
����


�

������������&0)��+�������
��������-�����

����������
���
�������������
������������������
���
�

���������������;5��

��������������������� �
���"��������
���������
����
��
��������
���������������������+-�����

��
����������"����
�)��������������������������
���������
����������
���������



���������
���
���������
���
�������������
���������������
�������������������
������
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 21



6 

$2� �	&�
��
��

�

8�4� .����
����
����	���	��
�����
��1
����
���

������������������
�������������
�������
����������������������3��������"��������
�����������

�������������
���&

���6<47�����
������������������������������������������
����
���-�=�������


��������>6��������?-���������������������
���
����
����+����������
���������������	$���

$
���
+���
���
��������������������������������������������������������	
��
��=��	:�?�����

����������������

�
��/������
�������������
�
������2���
����������������������
�����
����

$������"�������������������������������
�����-��������������������������3"��)�����������

$������"������)���������������������������
����������������
����-����������+�����������+-�

����
�

����
�-���
������+��������������
�������������������+���
��������
���+��������2������

���������

�������������������
�
������������������
����+��������
�
��
���������&��������0�

)��
����+�=&0)?���
���������

�

8�6� ,�����+-� �
���"�����-�������
�����3"���
����������������
+-�������
�����+�������
��
���� �
���

"��������������,������3"���
���-�3������/����
���+�"��
�����3"���
�����������

���
����

/����
���+�"��
�����3"���
�������4�&

���6<46��%�������������
�
������������������������������

����������������������������
����������
����������
�����+������
���������������������
��������


�
��
��������������������
��1�����+������������=�1�?�����3"��)��������%��&������6<47�

 �
���"������������������������+������������
��+�����������@������������
��
����:-��������

�
��
������

�
����������+������
������������
����
�
�����������

�
�������
������������������

����������
������
��
��������
����������+�������
��������
���
��
�����

��
������&������

�������������
�����������

+����
�
�
���������������
�����&0)���
��������
��������������:��

���
���������������������
��������� �
���"���������

�

8�7� 	��������������������������
���������
������������&0)���
���������������� �
���"�����-��������

���������������
���������
����+�
���������������&0)���
��������������
�����
�����������������

�����������������������������������
��������������������������+����&0)���
�������������������

����������������
�����������������������������

���������@������������
��
����:���� �
���"��������

�

8�8�� �		���
���
�����
��
	����
��	����

=&0)?���������������
���������������+��������������������
�����
���������������
�������#�
�����
�

���������-��
����������������������
�����
������������

��������������

��
��

��������-������
�

�+�����
������������
��+�������������������������
�����������
�����
�����������������-�����

��
�
�����������

���������������
����������
����
�����
���
����������������������#�
���-�

����������������+��������'��
�������������
�A��
������������������������������
����+�

��
�
������������������
�������
�
����68����
������+-����������������������������+������
����

�����������
�������

�
�
���������������

�

8�9� =&0)?���
����
�����������
����+��������
����+
��B�

• �+
��45��&����������������68����
���
���������������
���������������������������������������

����������������
�����
���
����������
�������#�
+�����������������
����+�
��������������

���������
���������
�����������
�����������������
���������

• �+
��65�&������������������������
������+�&0)���
�����=������
����������+-�������?������

���������������������������
�����
���
��������
���������

• �+
��75�&0)�2���
��+
�����&0)C*���
�%�#�
+�/�����=*%/�?C����'�������
��-�

���
��+�

�����������
�����
����������������������������
����+�
���������&��+
��7���
�
��������+�

��������
������
���
��������%����+������'�����������������#�
�&0)��
��������������

Page 22



7 

��������+��&�������������
����
�������������
�����A�����+����������+
��7���
�
��������������

����
������������������
���#�
������������������=�

�������
�����
��?������������
�������+�

������������������

��������
4
���

�

8�;� (�������
�7�;���������
��
��������,�����:��&������������)��
����+���
�
����������6<46-�4<�


�
��������
����������6<4<-��������������
����:��&0)���
�
������������
���������

6
��

�

)2�+����
���
����������������

�

9�4� %���������
����&0)���
�����������������	
��
��������+�����������������
����
����������

�������-�����������������

����
������&0)���
�������%����������������������������
����
������

�����
������
��������
������
������+���������
������������
�������������������������
������

	
��
:����
����
����������������������
�����������������
������
��������

�

9�6� �����������������������
����
�����&0)���
������������+���������������������
���
�����5�

����"����������������"���������������:��
�
�
��������������	�
�������
���������
�
-�����

����D���:��E�����
������������������������"�������������������������A��
+����
�������
�

�����������	���������
�����
�
��&����������
���������+�����,������&������+:��"������

�������������&0)���
�����-�=���
����������������
��������
�
�������������
��
����������
�

�������������,������&0)���
��������
��

�����?-��������������������.�
�����������
�������

��
�������
���

�����-��������
������������������������
����������
��
�������������������


�
�
��������

�

9�7� �����������	
��
�������������������������3"���
�������������������������
����������������

��
�����������
��������

����
�����&0)���
�����-������������

�
�
��������
����
������



����
�����������
�����+���������������+���,������"��
�������������������������
�������&0)�

��
�
����������+�
��������

�������������
������������������������������	
��
�����


�

�������������������/
�������
�� ��
������������������������
��+����������������

��������������	
��
������
�����������
����������
����+���
����

��������
��������������

�
������
������
�

����
���������
�����&0)���
�����������/
�������
�� ��
���
��������������

������
������������
��-�����������������
���������
�����������
�������������������������
�

&0)���
���������������

�
�
��������
�������
������������
�

����
�����

�

9�8� %���
�����������
���������
���$������"���������
�����������

�#������
�
������������
�������

�
��������
��
��������+��������&0)���
�����-������������
������
�
��
���������&0)���
����������

����&0)������������������������
�
��
��������1�����
��������
�������
�
�
�����
�������


���������%���
����������������
���������
�������
�"�������"������������������

��
�
����������������
��
���������&0)���
�������

�

���

�

�

�

                                                   
1

Emergency Departments: http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/docs/health/2010/nr_100812_emergency_departments.pdf
2

http://www.london.gov.uk/media/assembly-press-releases/2013/09/are-london-s-hospitals-ready-for-a-e-pressures-this-winter
3

http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/health-committee/news/13-07-23-urgemrepcs/
4

http://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/files/kf/field/field_publication_file/submission-committee-inquiry-emergency-services-may13.pdf

Page 23



8 

�

*2�����
����
���1�	��
���

�

;�4� ,�������	����

���
�����������������������������������
�����������������������&0)���
�������
�������������

��+���
�������������@�����������������
:���������@���
����
�����:������������������
���

���������������
�������������������
�������������
����
��������&0)������������
��������������

���������
�������������������
���������������
��
���������&0)���
�������"�����
-����������

���������
����������������
���������
�����@�
����:��
������
-���������
�+����������������������

�����������
���������
�����
���-���
���
��
�-���������&0)���
�
���������������������

���������

�

;�6� .����
���
��������������

%��(��+�6<47�����"����������������"���������������:��
�
�
��������������	�
�������
�

��������
�
-���������D���:��E������A��
+����
�������
������������	���������
�����

�
-������������

���+����������
�����
������������������������
��
������&0)���
������� ����
�
�
���

������������������
���������
�����
�����1�1������
����
���
�
�������+��
��������������E�
�

����
��B�

�

• ,�������������������������
�������&0)��������������%��6<46C47�#�������
�7�9���������


��
������������&0)���
�
���������
����,�����-��
�����646-<<<���
����������6<44C46-�

����78F-<<<���
����������6<4<C44��

• ���������������,������&�����������
�������������
�����������+��
����
�����
����4<�

+��
�
F
-����
��������+�6G����6<46������+�7G����6<47��

• )��
����+�HHH�������
�����+�����
�
�����������+��
�=&

���6<46����*�
���6<47?-�������������
�

���
��������������
����������+��

I
���

• ����������������������
������������������������&0)���
����������������������6<�!�7H�����

�
��
���������������+���
�����@�+
��4:���
���������
��������������������������������
�����

����HHH������
��&�����
�
�
��������

����
�����&0)���
��������������
����������
�+�


�
������������+���������������
������
�������
������
�
������������-����
���
��
��������

���
��������������������+���

�

;�7� ����"����������������������:��
����������������������������
����������
��������������������

�������������2��+�4FG�������
����+���
�
����������������+��
��������������

������

���������������
���
�����
�A��
���4;����
��
�
���+���
����������
�����������&��������

��
��������������
����������������

�������������������������

�

;�8� �
�&�����������

+-���
����
���
�3"��)������',�����-��������������

������
��
������������
��

�����&0)���
�
�������������
���
�����
�������+���������������'�
��������������
����������������

�
��������
���
������������������

���������
�������
���������������������
������������
���

�+�
����������������������
�A��
������&0)��E�
���
��
�-�&0)���
�
��������
�������������

�����������
�������
�
��������������������
�������
��������������������
�-�
����������+�����

�
�����������������
����+���
���

�

                                                   
5

http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/health-committee/news/13-07-23-urgemrepcs/
6

http://www.kingsfund.org.uk/sites/files/kf/field/field_publication_file/submission-committee-inquiry-emergency-services-may13.pdf
7
 London Ambulance Service: http://www.londonambulance.nhs.uk/news/news_releases_and_statements/ambulance_staff_numbers.aspx 

8
 Ibid

Page 24



9 

;�9� �������+����
�����������������
����������
��
���������
���&0)���
�������+�

��������

����
���������
�����-�������������'�������
����"�����
-�����"�����������������������������

�����
���������
��	�
�������
����
����
��
���
�������
�����
�������
��	����������5��

�		���������
��������

+���������������������
�������
������������&0)���
��������
������������

�����
�
�+��������
������
���
�������������������+�&0)���
�������
��������&���-�������
��

��

���������
�����-����������
�����

����
�������������
�������
���

�

;�;� �
����
��	�
���-�
��������
����������+��������������	���
���$
���������
�-�������������������
�


��������+�
��
����
������������&0)������������&0)���
�������
������
���+�9��	&�
�����		�����

$�������������������������������+�����&0)�����������

+������������������������
�������	$�-�

������������
��
��������������
�����
�������

�

;�F� ���
����������
��������������
������������
�&0)����������������
�
���	���
��������###�.���

���1��
���$�������������
��
�����������������444���
����������������
�
�
����

������������

����������
������
�
��
��������������
��������������

����
�����&0)���
�������+��������

���������
+�������������444���
�����������
������������������
���������������������
��������

����
���

�

;�I� ,��
���
�
�����9�����������
��	��1
������
4�6�
��
��
�� ���
��

������������+���
��

����
�����
���������&0)���
���������
����������
������
��
������������

&0)��
������������������������+��������������
������������
�

����
�������+�������������������

�����������>9<<�����������
�&0)���
���������������+-�=>69<�����������
�47C48�����>69<���������

��
�48C49?�������������������
�

����
����>99��������������������>69<����������������������

,�����-��������������������

��
��+����
��������%����������������������������������������������+�

�����������������������������������������
�����+�����������/
�������
�� ��
��� ��������

���
����������������������#�
��+������������+����������������������+�"��������
����������

����������������
�����������&0)���
�
���������
�������������
�
�
������

�

;�H� 3"��)��������������������
�7
��
��%�
�� ��
��������������
��+������������������������������

	
��
������
�����������
����������
����+���
����

��������
���������������
���-����

������������������������&0)���
�
���������������
�
��������
�
���
��������
�������������


�������-���
��������������������+�����������)����������������
�����������
�������

�

;�4<� �
�&�����������

+�����������������������

����&0)�����������������������������������
����
���



�����������������������
���+�������%����������
�����
�������������������������
�����
'�����+�


�
���
���
�-���
�������
���������������+����������
����������������
������
�������+�����

��������
�������
����

���
�������������������������
��������
�����
�������
����
������
������+�����
�
�
�����������6<�

!�7H�+��
�������
�����
�������+�����������&0)���
�������&��������+������


������������

���������
���+��������
�A��
�����

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 25



10 

-2�����
����������
��������	���	�
��0����

�

F�4� ����
��������4������
����
��
9��
���

%�����������������������������������������������������������������A�����������
���+��������
�

"������-��������������������
+��+�����"��������
����+�$����������

+�������
���������������&0)�

��
�����������$�������
��������������
����������������������������������������������������&0)�

��
����������
�
�������������+-�����������
�������
��
��
���������

�

F�6� ��
��A�����������
�����
�����5��

• "����������&0)���
�
���������������+���,������"��
�������
���������������
�����������������

����������������J��

• �������������������/
�������
�� ��
�������
�����������������
�����
+�������

��������
����

�����������
�����
������
J�������
��������+���������������������������������
����
�������

���������J�

• ���������&0)���
�
����������������������
+�
����
���-�
�
������
�+������
��������������������

��������������������������������J��

• ������
����
�������������������������������
�&0)�������+J�

• %������������������
��������&0)������+�+������������
���������������+J�%������
�����
����+�
�����

����������������J�

• �����������������������


�

������������&0)J�����������������������

����������������

���������������������������
����J�

�

F�7� ������������
��
����1�����������1�
���
��

������+���,������"��
�����&0)���
�
����������
���68����
������+-���������+��������������

��
�
�����������������499-<<<�
��������=����������������
��?������+��
��������
�
������

���������������/
�������
������
�-���
��������������
��-�������
����+�������������
��-�

��������-����������������������������������
�
���������
��:��&0)��

F�8� ������
�
�������������
���������+����������,������&�
�&�����������
�������������������
���

#�������������
������
�����+����
�
���������������
������������������

�������������
�

�����������
��������


�

�����+��

�

F�9� 2������>69<�����������������
�

����
��������������������������+�����
�������
������

���������+-� �
���"������3"���
���������
�������>46�I����������&
�������
���A��
��
��=>H�4�?����

�����������������
�����������

���
���-�3����������������+���,���������
����������-�����

����A��
��
�=>7�F�?������������������������������+����������

�

F�;� :������������
��	���

&������������������
����A�����+������
��������&0)���
�
��������������H9G��������
���&�����'

����������������

�
�
�+���������&0)���
�
�����-���

�
�����+�

��
������������������������

����������'��������������������
����������������������H9G��������
�
������������-��
����������

����������
�������
�����
��������������������
����
���������+���,��������������������H7�HG�

�������������������
������=3������
�6<47?��

�

F�F� 7
��
��%�
�� ��
���
���������
��
	��	�
����1
�����
��1��
��
�� �
��������������
�������

�	���
�
��1�
���

&��
�A��
����+�3"��)������-�����
�"���������	����������
����/
�������
�� ��
�����������
�

������
�������������
����+���
����

��������
��������� ��
�������������������+��������

Page 26



11 

�����
����
�����

�
��
���������������+���,������&0)-�������������������������

��������

�
��
����
�����������
������
���������������	
��
:�����������������+���,������"��
����-����+�

���
���
��������
�������
��������� �
���"����������������+���,�����������
��
�������+�

����

�
���������������������
������
���
����+-�
�������
��������
�������
���������������
�����

�����
�������
���
������������
���������������������������
�����

����/
�������
�� ��
�:�����
����+���
����

��������
�����������������
����


���������������=�����?-����� �
���"�����������
��
����������
�����+��+���
����������

������������������������
������
�������������5�

�

• ����������+�������
����+���������������������������������������
������
��
��������

����������������������������
��������������+��&�������������������������
���������������

�������
���
���������������������������������+��������
�������
������������������������

��������
���
����������
+����������������

�

 �
����������1��
���������#$#��������
���5�����
�1��	���
��������	
�����������1�����;����������

��������
��
�����
��*"�5���2�#/��������
���	����
����5��������������5��
����
������2�

�

• �������������������+��������������
�����������������������������������
�
����������
���

���C�
��������������������+������
�����
��
����������������
�
�A��
����������
�-����������

���
���
���������������������+���
���������������������

�
�����������������������

�������-���
������
�
������������������+��������
������������

�

 �
�����������
����������
���������
����	����	�
��	����
����������
������������
���	�
��

1
�1�
���
����������
��
�����5����
�	�����	
�����������1�������
��	����
�����������11�
��

1����
������������
��
���	��������5���
���������
�;�������
������
���
�1��	����
�	�

��
��	��;��0�
����	������
&�
�	�1�	�����
������
�������
&�
�2�

�

• &


�

�����

������������
�����������������
����������

�
�������+�������
�����������
��

������������
���������������������
����+���
�
��������

�

 �
���������������5���
�����
��<#2)���
���1
���
��������������1����
����
���������
�����

��1
�����	��
�	����=����1
�	�����2� �
��������������������1
��
���������1����
��
���
��

��
&�
���������
�����������1����
�������1
�	���;���
&�
������
�����
���&�����
&��
�����

���	�������	���
�������1�	���������
��
	��1����
��1��������
������
�������
�����>���
���#;�

5����2��

�

>���
���#2�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

• ��������
���
��
������������
�����������������������������������
+�������������������������

�����-�������
�������������������+���������������������������
�����
���������
���

�

Admission 
avoidance and
effective 
discharge  

Assessment 
capacity 

Inpatient 
Process 

Page 27



12 

,�
�����
�<!2$�����5��
���
�����������
	
�������������
��	�1�	������
�1����
��;��
	����
��

��
����
��
�	��
�	���	���
��
����
��
	����1�
���
�������
�����������&;��
����
�����
�
��

	���
���
����
��
	����1�
���
��;�1������
�	��
������
����	���
��	��2��

�

• 2������"��
��������������
��������
��������������������
�������
��

��
�������
����



���
+������������
+����������
�������������������
�-��
�������
������
�-�
�+�����
���

�������-���������
���+����
��������
����+����������������+���

�

 �
�����������������
&����
���	������
������
��������
��1����
��;�5����
&�
��������0��

���

1�
�
�
�;���11�
��
�������
��
���
�������������
��5����
�	�
���
���
�����
������������
�

1����
��;�������������������1�
���	�����1�������������
��
�����1����������01�	��������
���

�
��1
������������������
���	�
��
��
	�2�

�

• *�������������
�

����
����+���
�������
��������+��������������
������������
������

�
��

��������
�+���
����������
�����

����������'�����������

��
��������

�

�
�?�	��������5��
�������1���������1���������������
�����	���
	����@��
��������
���

<'"";"""��
��0�
��3�����=��=���
����11�
�@�<AA;"""������11�
��1����
����������
�����������

1
�5���������
�����
�������
�����
��
	����1�
���
��2�<#2/)���
��������	
����������
���

�����;��
��
	
������	����
������11�
���
���		��������01�
���1�
��
;���1�	��������
�����
���

1����
��2�

�

• *��������������������

��
��+�
��������
��
��������������������C

���
+C���������
����

�

6�
&�����
=���
�������.��������
��
��
�	��1������		�
����������
�1
���
��	�
���������
��

1����
��������		�
����
��1��&��
����2��

�

• ,������&�����������
�����!���
����+���
�
���
���������������������

�

.�����
��
���5���
	����
��	���

�
����
��������5��
��
�
���	���������1�5����
���
����

���
��
	��1����
������2�

�

• $����������������������������������
����������
�������������
���������������������

����������
�������������������
���������

���������


�

�����&0)�����������������
�����


���������
�����������+����������&0)���
��������������������-�����������������


���������������������������/
�������
�� ��
��
�����������
����
������������������

�

 �
�����������������
	������	
���=5�
�������
&���
��	��1���
;���
��
����������������
�

������1�
��
	������
������
�������
��
����
��
	�2��������
�
����	��1���
���������������


�
��
�����	��
	���(�������
�������
���1�1�
��
������
���	���1�1�
�;��
���	���
�����������
�;�

5���
�������
����	����
����
&�
�������;��
��������
����5��
����
����������
��
������
���
��

1�
�
�
����	�����������6��	�;�3����
��
���;���5
�
���;��	�������
��
�����
�����	�
�������2�

��
��������
&���
������
���������������5��
�1
���	�����	�����1����
�;�5�

�
�;�������1�

	�
����
�����������������1�1��1����		�����11
�1
�����	�
����
�����
�������	�
��
����2��

�

%����������������������

���������
���-�D�+�$�
��
������%�������
��=D$%:�?���������
�����
�+�

������
�������������
��

���������
���
��������������
���������������������������������
������
��

D$%:���������5�

Page 28



13 

�

• ��������
�������
	���

K�
���������������+�����������5�
��������������+���������������������������

• ��������
��%�1�	�������

 
�������������
����
�������
����
����'���������
��������

• B
1����
��1
�	����

������
�������
��4<�������46
�B���
��
+��������������B����
�����������������+5��
�������+�


�
��
����������

• ����	�����>��	��
�������

*�������+�����
��������������������������+��������������+�B��������+���������
����
���������+�



�������-�����+����
�����
���
��

�

�

/�� ���4���5��	�1�
	�1���
���
�������
�1��	�����

I�4� $������
�
��
���������&0)���
����������������������#�
�����
�����
��������������
+������������

���&0)���
�����-����+�
���������
��������
����������������������������������
�������������

�����������������������	
��
�=��	?���
��������
�����������L���


�

�����+M�������&0)������+�

�
���������
������


�

�����������+���+����������������
������������

���
+�����

��������+���
������������"�����
-������������	
��
����
������-��
�����
�������
�
�
�������

���
����+�������+�
���������+����+�

�����������&0)���������
���������+����������

�������������������
��+��


�

�������

�

I�6� ����
�"�������$������"������

�����������	
��
����������
��������
�������=6<46C47?�

�����
�
����

�����
H
����
��
���

���������@���


�

�����+:����&0)5�

�

• ������������������������

�����������������
+��
����+�������
�������������
�
���������������

������
�����=88G� ����������-�6<G������� 
����������HG�2���
������?�=����&

�����5��������

4?�

• 2��
�������
���
����
�����������������������
�������������
��
������
������4I'7<�+��
������

=����&

�����5��������6?�

•  +������
��
-��������������������������
���
���4I�!�7<�+��
������=77G���������?�����������+�

74�!�88�+��
������=69G?-�89';8�+��
��=49G?�����<'9�+��
������=46G?�=����&

�����5����
��4?�

• ����������+��������������������
����8;G������������������
�����98G���������4<�������;
���

����;'H
��������������������������
�
���
������68G��������������������=����&

�����5����
��

6?������46'9��������������������������
����=�
��
�?��
������
�����������+��������������=����

&

�����5����
��7?�

• E�����������������
�����
�������������
��
�-���������;'H
��

�����������-�������5�

�� �������������
�����������������
������� 
����������������2���
B�����

�� ���������������������������������
�������������������
� �����������=����&

�����5��

������7?�

I�7� %��
�����������
������
�
��
���������&0)���
�����-�����
��������
����������������
�������


����
��������������+�*������+-�=��������������+�3"������
�"������-?�

������

��
�������������������������
���������+�
��
����������������+���,������"��
����:��

)��
����+���
�
�����-�
��
�����
�5��

• �������������������������������������
���������
�"��������������
������������������

������������
�
��
�)��������

                                                   
9


��������+����������������

�
��/����=��/?

Page 29



14 

• ���+���
����������+��������������������������������
�-������������+����+���
��

����������������������
�	$��

• ���+���������������������
��

��������+�&0)���
����������������������
�
��
���������

�������

�+�����
�	$��

• ���������&0)�������
�������������������
+���������������
�	$�
4<
�

�

I�8� ���������������������
�������
�����������������������������
�"�������"�����������
��������

�
���������
�����������������&0)���
�������,�����
�������������5�

�

�������������������������
���	�
�������������������������������������	�������� ������	�� ��!"�

�

���
�	��������	�#�������	������	���������
�$�����%����#������& ��������� ����������������

��������
�����������$���� ����%
����������&��%	����� �������$�������������������	�$������

� ���!"���

�

�'����#�� ���������������������	����$��������������(����%���� ����& �������%��%������������	�����

�#�� �
������ �����������	��� ����&�� �)����%����������$��������������� ����� �
��������&�����	�

� �
���
���������
�������	��#�� ��*+���	�� ������%	�$������ ���������������$������������	!"�

�

�,�������� ����	�
��	�������
�����������%
���	�� ��#����� ���� �
�	�������
���-�
���	�����&����

������� �����������	��������
�&�� �� ����������$%��!�����
����$�����%
�������� ������	�����

�%����������-���
!�.�� �����������������	������#��� ����� �����	�� ���� �
�&�%%���
$��� ����


������!��/ �
�&�%%��0������
����������	������%���%"!��

�

����
����%���%�*+�#����0���%��
�����������1������������	���%
�2�*+������������!�/ ��������������

�����
�����$��������#��������	�� ��#����� ��������
����%���%�*+���	�� �
���������������������������

��� ���	����������
������$��%��������������	�����&�%���$��!����	�� ���& ���
������������
������

�����&������������$���������������$����������������	������������	�����	���	������$������

���������!��

�

I�9� ����
��
������
�������
�"�������"�������������
����
�������
����������������������


���������
������
���+�A�����
��������������&0)���
���������������+���,�������$��
�������������

��
��������
�����+����������-���������
�A��
��

��
��

���������-�����+�����
������
���
����

���+��&0)���
����+���

���������������
�����
�+�����������������������������
��
��������������


�����
��������������
�

����������������������������$����������������������������
�����������

�������
�

�����������������������
�����+���������������������������
�
��
�����������

���������������
�������������������������&0)������������
����@��������:��
����@���
����+:B�

���+�#����

���
���������
���������
����������������������������������
�����+��������
������#�
+�

����

���������������������

�

I�;� �������
��������������
���"���������������������������������������������

�
�����
�

"�������$������"������������
����-�������������������
������&0)���
�������
�������+��+�����

��������������
��+��������
�
��������������������
���������
���

�
�
�������������
�
��������

����������������������������������
��������������
���
�����-������
�����

���������
���������

&0)���
��������-������������@���


�

����:�����������������

�

                                                   
10
���
�������
������������
�����������@/������+�
�
��
����:�

��������+�����
�"�������
��������������������&

�����-�����
�����
���6-�7-�8�����9�

Page 30



15 

I�F� ����
�"���������������
���������������
�
�������-����������
�
���������
���������
����

��
��������������������������
�������������
��
��$�
���������
������
�����

�����-����������������

�������������
�������������������
�������������

�
�
��������������������������������
������


�
�������-���
������+������������
�� �������������

�

I�I� �����������	
��
�������������������+���������������������������������
�����
���
���
�����#�����

��
����������������������������������������	
��
�=��	?-� �
���"����������������������������

��

�
��/����=��/?����������+�����������
���
��������
�
���������
��������������
�
����

�����
�����������������
������������
��������
����
���������-�������������������������


����
�������
�����+��
����������������

E�
���
���'��
���A�������������
����������������������
����������
������������

����
�������

��
�@���


�

����:���������������������������
���
�������������
������������������
���

�

A2�%�
	�����
��
��
�	����
�����
���

�

H�4� �����������	
��
���������� �
���"�����:��
��
������������
��
�
�
��
����������

����
���

���������+���,������&0)���
�
�����-�������
�������
������+�����
�
���
���
���
����������

����/
�������
�� ��
����������������
��������������

��������
�����%���������
��������

���+�����������������������
��������������
������������+-��������+��+������������������������

������+���
�
��������
�����������������������=��
�����
��-��
�����
��������������
�����&0)�

��
�����-����������
��������-�����
��������-�
������
�
��
���������&0)���
�����?������
��
������

����
���������������
�����������
�������+�����/
�������
�� ��
�:����

��������
��������

��������
������������������+���,��������
�����������
�������
���
������

��

H�6� �����������	
��
�������������
�
�������������� �
���"��������������
�
���
�������

�������
�����'��
����
���������������������
������
���
��
�������
�&0)���
�������&��������

����/
�������
�� ��
����������������
�������
�������������������
�
������������������
�
�����

��������
�
�������-�������
�
�
�������+������������������%���������
��������-������
��
�����-�

 �
���"���������������������������
���������������


����������
���
�����������
�
��������

����
����
���-������
�������
�����������������������������������������
�
����
�����������+�

��������+�����������������������������������+���
�
������������
�&�����������

+:����
����������

������

����&0)�������������������������������������������������������
�������������
���+������

�

H�7� �����������	
��
���������������������������
���������������
����������������������������

�����
�����������+� �
���"����������������
�����������������������+����#���������
�
�������-�

��������������+��
�����
��������������
�
�
+������+��������������+��
�����
���

�������-�

���
�
�������������� �
���"�����������
�����������������
��
���������
���������������������

����������������
����*�
��C&

���6<48������������������������������
�
�������
��������������

�������	
��
��������������������
������������������� �
���"��������
��������������������

���
��
�������������
��
������������
���������
��+������

�
��������-���������#�������#�������


���
������������������������������-��������������
����������������
�����������������
�����

�

�
�����������������������
��
�������������
�
�����������������
�-���
��������������
����

��������������������������
����
���������������
�����������
����������
��������������

��������+��������������
��������

�

H�8�  �
���"�����������������
��������+������
����������-�������������������������
����
+������
����

���
����������������������������

��������������������������������������
���+����-�����

��

��������������������������������������N��������������
������
�����������/D���"�����
��������

Page 31



16 


�������1�����
���������
������
44
-�������+���,������&0)���
�
��������
��������������1��

����������&0)���
�
���������������+���,�������������������
����5���������
��
�����-���
����

������

�
������������
�
����������

������������
�����+�����������
��������
��������


�����������������������������
��������
��
��
����������������������������
��������������������

�����������
�
��������������'���������������
����������
���%��
����
����������
�������

���
������
������������-���������������������������

������������
�������������

���������

��������
���������������������������������

�����������������
��������������
�
����������

���������������
������������
���:������
����
����+���
�
��������������
������������

�������

�������
������������
��-����
���������������
������������
������A�����+��

�

H�9� �����������	
��
-����
���������������������
��������������1�:����
�������
���
����+-����

�����
������+�����������������������&0)���
�
������������
��
���������������������


��������������-��������������������������������������

�
���������������
�
���
���������

���
��������������
�-�����������������������������

����������������������������
�
�������-�

��������������������+�
����������

����
��������������������
�����-�
�
������
�+�&0)��

�

���������������45�

��������������������������
����
�

�������������

���������������������������������������������

��������+���
�����������
�������
��������

�

���������������65�

�����������������
���������
�����������+����������&0)���
�������������������������

������

����
�

���
+���
����
��������
�����
���������-�������
�
���������


�

������������������

&0)��

�

���������������75�

�����������������������������

��
�������
����������������������-�������+������������������

�����������������
������������+�������+��-�
���������������
��

����
�����3"������&0)���
������

�����������
����������

�

���������������85�

�����������������������
�����������
������� �
���"������3"���
��������
������
��
������

��
�������
�������
������
�������
�������
����������

����
�����&0)���������
����
�����

��
��������

�

���������������95�

����������������:��
���������������
�������
��
�������� �
���"������3"���
������#�����
����
���



�#������������
�����
������
���������
����


�

������������&0)��+�������
��������-�����

����������
���
�������������
������������������
���
�

���������������;5��

��������������������� �
���"��������
���������
����
��
��������
���������������������+-�����

��
����������"����
�)��������������������������
���������
����������
���������



���������
���
���������
���
�������������
���������������
�������������������
������
�

�

�

                                                   
11

 http://www.cqc.org.uk/directory/r1h 

Page 32



17 

�11�
��0�#�

�

��5��2�#4�����
��
	���5�����
�	����

E������+��
� 6<46C47�

����,������ �������&������������� G����������

&�%&35� ������������
� 
������ ����������� I78H� 88�

&�%&35�%�������
� 
������%������ 6H;� 6�

&�%&35�2���
�&����-� 
������&����-�&�����/��
�������� ;89� 7�

&�%&35�$����������
� 
������$��������� 6<F� 4�

 ,&�D5�&�
����� H89� 9�

 ,&�D5�&�+�����
� ����������
����� 774� 6�

 ,&�D5���
������� 744� 6�

*%O)�5�2���
�*����-�*�����/��
�������� 4H4� 4�

*%O)�5�����������&����� ;F� <�

*%O)�5����������� �����&�
����� ;9� <�

*%O)�5����������� �������
������� 478� 4�

32����&�)�� F;H� 8�

2�")�5�&�+�����
���������
��
� HF;� 9�

2�")�5��������� 4H7� 4�

/������� 8H� <�

�"%�)5�&�+�����
������������
����� 4;87� H�

�"%�)5� 
������=)������-���������-������?� 7I9I� 6<�

�"%�)5�%
���� 476� 4�

	
���������� 4H4;4� 4<<�

�

�

��5��2�!4�����
��
	���5����
��
�

)�������+������ =&��?�

�������&�������

������ �������,������

6<46C47�

6<46C47�

������ 	
����������

����,������ E������ *���� 3���D����� O�*���5�������������

<����9� 4<4;� 4698� 4� 66F4� 66F4� 4�678696�

;����44� 878� 9F;� 4<4<� 4<4<� 4�76F4IH�

46����4F� 88<� 9<8� H88� H88� 4�489899�

4I����7<� 76IF� 7<7<� ;74F� ;74F� <�H64I47�

74����88� 64I;� 6998� 8F8<� 8F8<� 4�4;I788�

89����;8� 477I� 489H� 6FHF� 6FHF� 4�<H<877�

;9����I8� 86F� 97I� H;9� H;9� 4�69HH97�

I9P� 8;� F4� 44F� 44F� 4�9878FI�

3
�
�������� A#-$� AA/*� #� #A#*#� #A#*#� #2"//)##�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 33



18 

%��
��#2�����
��
	��5�������
��1�
�

�

�

�

%��
��!4�����
��
	���5������������
�

�

�

�

%��
��'4�#/=$$����
�����;�1
���
�����
��5������������
������������&�

�

<����9

;����44

46����4F

4I����7<

74����88

89����;8

;9����I8

I9P

<

9<<

4<<<

49<<

6<<<

69<<

7<<<

79<<

8<<<

89<<

9<<<

��
���4

<

9<

4<<

49<

6<<

69<

7<<

79<

8<<

89<

9<<

46'9��

;'H��

4<'46��

47'49
�

8';
�

4I'64
�

66'68
�

Page 34



19 

>���
���!4�7�����5��1�
	�1���
�

�
�

>���
���'4�7�����5��1�
	�1���
�

�
�

>���
���$4�7�����5��1�
	�1���
�

�

Confused usersConfused users

Basic/poor English. Account for ~6% of all inappropriate Basic/poor English. Account for ~6% of all inappropriate 

use of A&Euse of A&E

Key characteristics:Key characteristics:

�� High % Bangladeshi and nonHigh % Bangladeshi and non--UKUK

�� 72% 2672% 26--34 years old34 years old

�� Lowest GP registration (77%) and state Lowest GP registration (77%) and state ““do not know do not know 

howhow””

�� Like GP but attend A&E as confused Like GP but attend A&E as confused 

1

Seemingly confused but dissatisfiedSeemingly confused but dissatisfied

Have good English skills, disenfranchised and frustrated. Have good English skills, disenfranchised and frustrated. 
Account for ~21% of all inappropriate use of A&EAccount for ~21% of all inappropriate use of A&E

Key characteristics:Key characteristics:

�� Attend both GP and A&E very frequentlyAttend both GP and A&E very frequently

�� GP often advises to restGP often advises to rest

�� A&E often does testsA&E often does tests

�� PartPart--time, manual workers / unemployed seeking time, manual workers / unemployed seeking 
workwork

�� All ethnic groupsAll ethnic groups

�� Believe OK for primary care to use A&EBelieve OK for primary care to use A&E

2

Emotionally attached to A&E usersEmotionally attached to A&E users

Prefer A&E for primary care based on perceived Prefer A&E for primary care based on perceived 
quality. Account for ~33% of all inappropriate quality. Account for ~33% of all inappropriate 
use of A&Euse of A&E

Key characteristics:Key characteristics:

�� 61% female61% female

�� Highly ethnically diverse Highly ethnically diverse –– 34% Bangladeshi and 19% non34% Bangladeshi and 19% non--
BritishBritish

�� 28% (very high) are 1828% (very high) are 18––25 years25 years

�� State strongly that even if sent to WIC last time, would still gState strongly that even if sent to WIC last time, would still go to o to 
A&E next time with same conditionA&E next time with same condition

�� Find it easy to get access to GP within 48 hrs and register but Find it easy to get access to GP within 48 hrs and register but 
prefer A&E to GP based on own and community belief that prefer A&E to GP based on own and community belief that 
quality of care is betterquality of care is better

3

Page 35



20 

�

>���
���)4�7�����5��1�
	�1���
�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Convenience UsersConvenience Users
Prefer to go to A&E based mostly on the convenience of Prefer to go to A&E based mostly on the convenience of 

A&E. Account for ~39% of all inappropriate use of A&E.A&E. Account for ~39% of all inappropriate use of A&E.

Key characteristics:Key characteristics:
�� 68% British white, 58% male, young: 68% below 3568% British white, 58% male, young: 68% below 35

�� 21% (twice average) unemployed, not seeking work21% (twice average) unemployed, not seeking work

�� 34% on income support34% on income support

�� Unhappy with life in TH overallUnhappy with life in TH overall

�� Prefer convenience of A&E: Prefer convenience of A&E: 

�� Location is convenientLocation is convenient

�� Tests are done quicker; all done in our placeTests are done quicker; all done in our place

�� Choose A&E because GP appointments are not at Choose A&E because GP appointments are not at 
convenient timesconvenient times

4

Page 36



21 

�11�
��0�!�4��	���
����
�C��	
���
�������������		���
�������
��
	����������
��	����
�����
����������

��������������� ���
�����C����������C�&������ ���
���������+� �����

�#2�� �����������	
����
�������
������������������������������
������	�

�����
����
������������
����������	
��������	
�����������	��

�����������

�

$������������������

����+���
��������������
������������������

����, �"����

����������������������������
��������

�����
�

���������������������������
�����������
��
������������+�������

���
�������������������

�

>�
�	��
������5��	�

��������

�������5��	���������

$
��
����������


�����������;��������

=��
�����
�6<48?�

�!2�� �����������	
�����������
������

������
������������
�����
�

����������������	������	�����
�����������������������������

���������������
��������
���������������	����
������������

����
����������������

�

2������������+�����
������������	$�
�����
������������
�A��
���

����
����������������
��
�����������������+������������
�

��������������
�����
������������
�������

�����������	$�


�����
���������
�������
������������������
���������

��
��+����-����������&��
�
���������"������,�������
����+-�


��������������
��������
���������������+������������
�����

��������+����������������������������������
������������

���������
����������������������������������������������������

����������
���������	-�3"��)����������� �
���"��������

�

>�
�	��
������5��	�

��������

��������5��	���������

$
��
����������


�����������;��������

=��
�����
�6<48?�

�'2�� �����������	
�����	����
��������
����������	
�������

�

��������
��������������

��
�����

��������������	��	������� >�
�	��
������5��	�
$
��
����������


�����������;��������

P
a
g
e

 3
7



22 

����������������������	��

���

�����������	����
��� ��
��

��������������
������	�	����������

�

%���������������������
���
�-���
������

��������
���������
��

��
���������������������������������-�������+�������-����������

�
������������������������������
������

����
�������������

��
��������
�������
��������

�������������������
��

����������������������
���������-���
���-������
-�������������-�

������������������������������������
�����������

�

�

��������

�������5��	���������

=��
�����
�6<48?�

�$2�� �����������	
������������������������������!�������������� �

��	���������

����������
���������
�����
�������
��
������

�������������	������������	����
������
�����������������

�������������

�����������������������
������������������
����
�����������
��

����� �
�����
���������
������������������
���������
��������

�����
�������
����
��������

��
��	�������

%��������
�
���
��

��������
��

%��������
�
��

��
�������
�������

�����������
��	���

���%6��

2������-����
�
�
�����



��
�����������

"��������
����+�$�����

=��
�����
�6<48?��

�

�)2�

�

�

�

�����������	
���"���	���������������������#������������!�����

��������� ���	�����$��
��������������$��������������

	
������
�������
�������
������������	�������������������

������
�����
���������������������
�������������

�

�

�������	������

�

��
�����������
���������������������
���+��
���������
�
�����

����@,�����"�
���:����
������%������������+����������
�������

��������������
����������������%��
�������	$�
�����
����������

��

������	$����������������
��"�����
-���������������&�����)�

��������
��������
����������������������������������
�
����

���


�

�������������������+���������
�
������%�����

�
�����

�����
���������������������������
�������������	����

��������

>�
�	��
������5��	�

��������

���5��	���������

/
��������������������

"��������
����+�$�����

���������
�����
�

6<48��

P
a
g
e

 3
8



23 

��
���������
��������������������
�������
����
����+�
����
�

��������
�����������
����
���

�#������

�

�

�*2�� �����������	
�����
��!�������������������
�������
�

����	���

��������������������	
������
�������

������

��
������	�����
��
����	���
���������
����������
��������

�����������������
���������������������

���������
��	
���

�
��������������
�������������������

�

 �
������
��
�������������������������+�����������������������

��
��+����
��
����
���������������������+���
���������
�

������������
�����+����
�������
��
������������%����������� �
���

��������
���������������
��������������
����
�
��������

��
��+�������
������


���������
��������� ����4�!�8�#����

������
��
������
���������
��������
�"�������
�����������������


��
���+������������-���������������������������������������


��
�����

�

%���
��
�������
�����������
�������������
������
�������������

��������+-������
���������
����������*����

+�����������


���������������/����
���+�������������������

���������������

(����6<48-�������
��� �
���"�����������
�����������������������


����������������
�����6<�����������
���*����

+�����������

�������
����������
��
������������
������������������
���

���A�����
�
���������������������������
�������
����
�
������

�����+���,������"��
�������������������

���������
������������

�����������������������������������
����

�

3
��1�>�
�	��
���
�

�������
��
	��%�
��

�
���	����,���	�
��

%��
�	����	�����	�

3
��1�����������

%���������
��

����	�����>�
�	��
�

��
�����%����
����

6�
&����
��������

���������������

�
����&�

�� �
�������������

2������-����
�
�
�����



��
�����������

"��������
����+�$�����

=3������
�6<48?��

�

�

�

�

P
a
g
e

 3
9



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Health Scrutiny Panel 

2 March 2015 

 

 
Report of: Tower Hamlets CCG 

Classification: 
Unrestricted 

Community Health Services procurement: update on procurement and engagement 
plans 

 

Contact Ellie Hobart, Deputy Director OD and Engagement 

 

Executive Summary 

 

Tower Hamlets Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is currently procuring community 
health services (CHS). In September, the Health Scrutiny Panel received a verbal update 
about the project. This paper provides further detail, including plans for engaging with the 
community to co-design services. 
 
At this stage, no decisions have been made about who should provide community 

health services. We have invited organisations to bid for the contract and expect to start 

working with them to co-design innovative services from April 2015, with a view to awarding 

a contract in December 2015 and have an improved service introduced from April 2016. 

The procurement will be carried out using competitive dialogue, a method of procurement 
that is used to negotiate large and particularly complex contacts. This enables us to work 
with patients, carers, clinicians and providers to co-design services and come up with 
innovative solutions that best meet the needs of the community. 
 
We are commissioning using patient outcomes. This is a best-practice approach in which 
providers are paid for delivering outcomes that are important to the people who use the 
services, as opposed to paying for the delivery of specific services. 
 
A Public and Patient Engagement Steering Group has been formed to advise on and 
support with community engagement. It is made up of representatives from Healthwatch 
Tower Hamlets and the Tower Hamlets Health and Wellbeing Forum (voluntary 
organisations), as well as CCG Patient Leaders. 

 
It is envisaged that successfully delivered community health services could underpin the 
future model of integrated care in Tower Hamlets. 

 

Recommendations 

 

The Health Scrutiny Panel is invited to: 

· Note the commissioning approach being used to procure community health services 

in Tower Hamlets, including the timescales and governance arrangements;   

· Note the plans for engaging the community, including the formation of a public and 

patient engagement steering group; and   

Agenda Item 2.2

Page 41



 

· Consider a suitable date to receive an update on the community health services 

procurement  

 

Background 

 

Community health services help people get well and stay well without having to travel too far 

from home. They are crucial to a successful health service: if we can help more people get 

well and stay healthy without visiting their doctor or the local hospital, patients will benefit 

and we will reduce the pressure on primary and secondary care services.  

 

People in Tower Hamlets are telling us some community health services need to improve. 

They should be able to get high quality health care close to home when they need it, but 

many of the existing services are providing an inconsistent level of care. While there are 

some examples of excellent services, such as those for people diabetes and some other 

long term conditions, a number of issues have been raised : 

 

· primary, secondary and social care services aren’t communicating or working 

together as well as they should 

· people are having varied experiences when they use community health services. In 

particular, there are issues when first trying to access services, the complex system 

is difficult to navigate, health professionals don’t always follow up with patients and it 

can be difficult to move from between services 

· integrated care records should exist, but they do not 

· some services are not spending enough time focusing on diagnosing people early 

and helping to prevent illness 

· the CCG has concerns about the cost-effectiveness of the current contact 
 
There is a significant amount of work to be undertaken, but we see this as an exciting 
opportunity to reshape community health services and improve the health of local people. 
 
The current community health services contract is due to expire in April 2016, so we are 
bringing together patients, clinicians and a number of potential providers to help us co-
design services and come up with innovative solutions that best meet the needs of the 
community. 
 
The CCG’s approach 
 
Between March and September 2014 we worked with patients and clinicians to develop a 
vision for community health services, and a preferred approach to delivery. 
 
Our vision: 
 

• Access: good access to services is key to effective take up of and navigation around 
community health services, based on patient need 

• Integration: service integration is fundamental to the community health services 
vision where community, acute, mental health and social care services work together 
cohesively to deliver services that are appropriate for patients in the right place at the 
right time 

Page 42



• Quality of care: the reliability of services is crucial to the patient experience 
• Personalisation: patients’ social and personal circumstances must be understood 

and valued. Community health services will seek to put patients in control of their 
care where possible and a delivery model that offers patients options to manage 
their own care 

• Outcomes approach: there will be a focus on commissioning for outcomes, 
encouraging and rewarding providers to develop more efficient models of care and 
gathering evidence base for effective community services.   

 
Key elements of the preferred approach to delivery include:  
 

· a single point of access for patients 

· personalised care plans 

· joint working between providers 

· a focus on prevention and early diagnosis 

· ensuring the patient voice is heard in the delivery of patient outcomes, in the co-
design of services and strategy, and as a key aspect of quality and improvement 

· providing corporate leadership for the community health system 

· leading on community health system enablers, such as workforce development 

· payment based on performance against outcomes (including patient experience) 

 
 

Innovative commissioning: 
  
We have chosen to commission a provider using patient outcomes. This is a best-practice 
approach in which providers are paid for delivering outcomes that are important to the 
people who use the services, as opposed to paying for the delivery of specific services. The 
CCG will run a programme of engagement with patients, carers and the wider community to 

Page 43



develop these outcomes. 
 

The procurement, which began in September 2014 and is expected to run until December 
2015, will be carried out using competitive dialogue, a method of procurement used to 
negotiate large and particularly complex contacts. This enables the CCG to work with 
providers, patients, clinicians and local stakeholders to co-design services and come up with 
innovative solutions that best meet the needs of the community. Competitive dialogue is a 
relatively new procurement route within the NHS. Ongoing discussions are held with a 
number of potential providers in response to a commissioner’s outline requirements. Only 
when a provider’s proposals are developed sufficiently are tenderers invited to submit 
competitive bids. Tower Hamlets residents will be recruited to sit on the procurement panel 
and help with the selection of a provider. 
 
Governance 
 
The Programme Board is an independent decision-making body made up of non-conflicted 
members of the CCG and external advisors and has overall responsibility for delivery of the 
community health services procurement programme providing the strategic steer for the 
programme. The Programme Board will advise the CCG Governing Body of its 
recommendations for a provider at the end of the procurement process 

. 
The Programme Board is advised by the following project boards: 

· Specification Development Group: responsible for coordinating the development 
of patient outcomes, which will be used to select the provider and monitor their 
performance. 

· Clinical Reference Group: provides clinical quality assurance to ensure the work of 
the Specification Group reflects clinical best practice. 

· Independent Procurement Group: responsible for independently assessing, 
approving / rejecting and progressing the procurement project plan, whilst providing 
overall assurance to the Programme Board on the procurement exercise. 

· Communications and Engagement Task and Finish Group: responsible for 
managing communications and ensuring patients, carers, staff and the wider 
community is involved in every stage of the procurement process.  

· Finance and Payment Mechanism Group: responsible for developing a financial 
model which supports the spectrum of patient outcomes and service integration, 
including risk and benefit sharing, proposing changes to existing payment 
mechanisms and contractual arrangements where necessary. 
 

Engagement 

 
Between March and September 2014 we engaged with the community to confirm a preferred 
clinical approach and agreed the method of procurement. This included desktop research, 
communications to patients and staff, a community workshop, a meeting with the Health and 
Wellbeing Forum, six meetings with Healthwatch including a community health event, the 
CCG’s AGM, programme events and locality meetings and a locality chairs meeting, a 
Clinical Commissioning Forum meeting and a CCG Organisational Development Session. 
 
In December, a Public and Patient Engagement Steering Group was formed to advise on 
and support with community engagement. It is made up of representatives from Healthwatch 
Tower Hamlets and the Tower Hamlets Health and Wellbeing Forum (voluntary 
organisations), as well as CCG Patient Leaders. At the group’s first meeting procurement 
plans were broadly welcomed and one member from the Health and Wellbeing Forum 
described them as ‘really innovative and aspirational’. 
 

Page 44



Patient engagement plans are currently being developed in conjunction with the Public and 
Patient Engagement Steering Group. They broadly fall into four tiers of engagement: 
 

1. Dec 2014: Formation of a Public and Patient Engagement Steering Group 
2. Jan – June 2015: Engagement with patients, carers, staff, providers and the wider 

community to design patient outcomes. These will be used to help select a provider 
and monitor its ongoing performance 

3. Feb – March 2015: Recruitment of local residents to sit on the procurement panel 
and aid with the selection of a provider 

4. Jan – April 2016: Local residents to support the provider with ongoing co-design and 
development of services 

 
High level timeline 
 

 
 
Next steps  

 

Organisations have been invited to bid for the contract and we expect to start working with 

them to co-design innovative services from April 2015. Between January and June we will be 

engaging with the community to design patient outcomes.  

 

The Health Scrutiny Panel is invited to: 

 

· Note the commissioning approach being used to procure community health services 

in Tower Hamlets, including the timescales and governance arrangements;   

· Note the plans for engaging the community, including the formation of a public and 

patient engagement steering group; and   

 

· Consider a suitable date to receive an update on the community health services 

procurement  

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Community Heath Services in 
Tower Hamlets  
 
 
 
 

Health Scrutiny Panel, 2 March 2015 

Community health services help people get well and 

stay well without having to travel too far from home. 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



People in Tower Hamlets are 

telling us community health 

services need to improve. 

 

The current contract is due to 

expire in March 2016. 

 

 

 

Excellent provision of some services, such as 

diabetes 

 

Good support for some people with long term 

conditions 

 

Services are locally accessible 

 

Primary, secondary and social care services 

aren’t communicating or working together as 

well as they should 

 

Variable patient experience, with specific 

issues around initial access, care co-

ordination, follow through and transition 

 

Lack of an integrated care record 

 

Variable focus on prevention and early 

diagnosis 

 

Themes from patient feedback: 

Why are we procuring? 

 

It’s a nightmare if you’re a carer 

trying to work your way through the 

system… Who provides it? What 

assessment do I need? My son has a 

personal care package, that took five 

assessments because everybody has 

their bit of the budget. 

 

Community workshop 31/05/2014 

P
a
g
e
 4

8



Most community services 

currently managed by 

Barts Health NHS Trust. 

 

Some community services 

managed by other providers 

are excluded.  

• Coordination function, such as the out of 

hours and single point of access service, 

advocacy and interpreting 

 

• Early years and children’s services, such 

as speech and language therapy, 

safeguarding teams, audiology and 

community nursing 

 

• Adult rehabilitation and therapy services, 

such as psychology teams, audiology, 

inpatient beds and termination of pregnancy 

 

• Adult recovery and prevention services, 

such as community mental health teams, 

foot health, stroke rehabilitation and 

community diabetes and education 

Services being procured: 

What services are we procuring? 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

9



Engagement undertaken so far 

 
Engagement activity so far: 
 

• Desktop research 

• Community workshop (31/5/2014) 

• Health and Wellbeing Forum (9/7/2014) 

• CCG Organisational Development Session 

(22/7/2014) 

• Six meetings with Healthwatch, including 

community health event (14/8/2014) 

• AGM (02/09/2014) 

• Programme events (10/6/2014 & 16/11/14) 

• 13 bulletins issued to staff and board 

members 

• Updates via GP e-bulletin and intranet 

• Written updates to Barts Health CHS staff 

• Clinical Commissioning Forum (5/8/2014) 

• Locality meetings (at least one in each) and 

locality chairs meeting 

 

 

 

 

Between March and 

September 2014 the CCG 

engaged with the 

community to confirm a 

preferred clinical approach 

and agreed the method of 

procurement. 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

0



Method of procurement 

 
We are bringing together 

patients, clinicians and a 

number of potential 

providers to co-design 

services and come up with 

innovative solutions that 

best meet the needs of the 

community. 

 

This type of procurement is 

called competitive dialogue. 
Outcomes-based commissioning: 
 

Paying for health and care services based on 

delivering outcomes that are important to 

people who use them. 

Competitive dialogue: 
 

Ongoing discussions with a number of 

potential providers in response to a 

commissioner’s outline requirements. This 

enables patients, clinicians, commissioners 

and providers to co-design services. 

 

Only when a provider’s proposals are 

developed sufficiently are tenderers invited to 

submit competitive bids. 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

1



The preferred clinical approach 

 

All services work together to give patients personalised care 

 

Organising people’s care 
 

• Patients access community health services through a single entry point 

• All clinicians use a shared IT system to streamline patient records 

• Services are accessible in and out of hours 

• Dedicated staff help people to move from one service to another 

• Patients have personalised patient care plans 

• Services are planned based on what patients need and what’s available 

Joint working between social care, public health and mental health 

Services for 

people who need 

longer term care 

for chronic / long 

term conditions 

Services for people 

who need shorter 

term rehabilitation 

care to get out of 

hospital and stay 

out of hospital 

Early years and 

children’s services 

P
a
g
e
 5

2



Procurement timeline 

 

Develop service specification 

(patient outcomes) 

Competitive 

dialogue with 

providers to co-

design services 

Review 

final bids 

and award 

contract 

Mobilise new 

services to start 

on 1 April 2016 

Involve / engage / co-design 

Service 

design 

finalised 

P
a
g
e
 5

3



Engagement 

 

2. Engagement with the 

community to design specification 

3. Patients / carers recruited to be 

involved in procurement process 

1. Patient representative group 

formed to advise on and support 

with engagement throughout the 

process 

4. Patients / carers involved in 

ongoing co-design of services 

with provider 

P
a
g
e
 5

4



��������	
���
����
��
����������	�
�

������
�����

��������
���
��
����
���
�

A
g
e

n
d
a

 Ite
m

 2
.3

P
a
g
e

 5
5



��
���
����
	���
���
�����

�� ��������	�������������������������������	�������� ��������

��������������������������������������
� ���	���������� �����

����	�����������������	����

��������!"����������������������
�

����������������#

�� $� ������������������

����������������	����	�������������

����������	���������
������#

%� $� ��������&������������������������ ��������'����	����	�

(�!���� ���	��������������
���������������������������	�
����#

)� *�������	��+����,�����
�+�

��������������
�������������

������������������!����������������������������#�

�� -��
�����������������	���������
������������������	��


��������!"���

��������! �����������������������	����	�����

��������������������#

.� -������������
�����"���!�������!��������������������������

����������������	����	������������������������������������

�	�
����
� �������
����	������

P
a
g
e

 5
6



��
���
�����	�������
��

����

�
	� / ����������������������������������������

�����������
����������0�����������������������

������������
������

�
��
���
���
�������
��1 ��� �����	���
�������
����

������������"����������
��	������������������"��
�����
��

�������!����	��	����������������!	���

�
����
	� / �	�����	��	�����	������������	��!�����������

����	�
��������
�����	�����������������

���� 1 ��������������������!	��	�������
�����������������

������


P
a
g
e

 5
7



���������	���
���
��������	����

������	��

��
�����������
	 ��������	
���
�����	����������������

����������	������������������	�������	����	����


��������	��	��	����

������	��������������������������	����
���

������
����	���  �����������������!����������	�

���������
�	�����������

������	��������	


�����������	����	���	��
�����������	���������

�������"#�

�������	����	������������	������


����$���������%�����%	����	�������

 ���	���������������	���

&�	������' ��������������������������	�����
������	�������	�����������	��$�������

P
a
g
e

 5
8



���� �	!��
���"#$%�

&�
���������������
��'��	����
�(�	�2������!��������������������

��

����
�!�������������������������������� ����������'����	�

���������������������!2�3�
�	�����4�������*����������"�5�����

'�
�����6�����������7��!	�����"�+����������������!�����	��8�	����

9��������"�8�����
������	��9�����4����
�9�����"�8�������

+�����"������-���"�(����3������:������

'��	���������� ��
��
�����
��2�5�����'�
�����6�����������

7��!	�����

)
��
��
��'��*��������*;("����������+�����"�6����'����	�+�����"�

4	����	�����������"�*���
�������"�9�����5����8��!��
"�'������

'����	�+�����"�5	��4�����!�9�����-�������"�'����	�(�"�+������

'����"�-����	���&��<������
�+�����"�$�������5�����'�
�����

)��
������ �	!��
��	����
��	����	���


P
a
g
e

 5
9



������ 	���!
�����
��	���	
�����

�������������	����
�	���	���"���	�
���������"�����

���
���������	����
���������
#

���	���$���������%�&�'�
������	����������
�'�	��
�����������	�������(&�
��!�
�)*�
�+����	
����,�

�����
������
��������	�����
��	���	�����"�
��
��	
�

���"�-�	���	��	���
�

.�����"��������'��������
��������	���
��	����
������

'��
	/

�����	��������
�
������
��
��

������

������	�
������	0������
�
���
����
	��

"�

'��
���������
�
�
����������
���
�����

���
�
�����

&��
�-������������
1���	����������
�
�����%�
�������
�����
�
	�����	�	��-��	���

�����'�����
�

�����������
��-���	���

��
������
��	��	��������������
���
�


��������
�����������
.�������"�������"�

 ������/�
�������-��"�

�����
�
	��	�����
��	���	
������	�������
��
�	����	�
!
"���	�
���	������	���	�
����
�������

���������"����	�������

������
������
�
	��	�
����	��������'���
��������2 ���������
�	��
�$�
����������
��
�	
������
��������
'�	���	�'��	�	����

����

&���	�������	����	��
������	�������"�����	�
��
��
���	�����������
��������"�-�	�&3�
������������	��
�

���
�4	�������	����
.����������4	�������
�
������-��	�	���/#

&��
�-�����
������������	���
���������������"�-�	�
	������
���������

�
.��	���	
�!��'/�	��
�

�

�������

���
	�������������
!�

&���	�$
�����������
�����	�
���!�	�������
�	����
��������	���2

��	���	
������

���	���.5������6/�
���������	���	����
.����	����-��!�

�����/

+��������� ��
��
�����
����,��
��
	�

(���
���	�2 
����

������
������
������-�����	����

����"�������	���	
�
��	���-���	����	�	�����
��

���	��������

7�����	���	
 8��
����

�
�������������
��
	��

��	���"�����
�����
�
	��������

���-�������������
�	
�
	������#

��������
	$�&�
��	���
7��	
 '�	�����	�����

�����	���
"�	�������������
��
��	���������	���	
��
�
����'�������"�����
��9����
�	���
���	"�

�
���	��������	���
��	���

&���
	�������:�2

���
�-�����

������$���	���	
�

��������
��
�����

-��������!���

��	����
������
��

;
���������������

������
�������������
���������
��� -�	��
!��'�����"�����

-����
��
���	��
�
'�����	���������
'����	������������
������
��	������

P
a
g
e

 6
0



+��������� ��
��
�����
���
�����
��*�
�

7���
������
�
������-��
���
���.��	���	/�
���	����2 ��������

����	�"�����"������	��"�
���	������������	���
�
.�	�/���
	��-�����	�����

���	�������	����
��������#

���	��������������
�2 -���
�

��
�������������
�-�����
������"��������������������
������#��(����
������-��

����'���	�������������������

��	���������'����	���������
�	#�����-�	�
���������������
�������
�2 ������
������

�����	��	�����-�	�����������
-�������������


�����	�����������������
���������	�2 ��	���	
�
'�	�����������	�������

��������	���������	���
�
�������	�����'�������	�����
.��!���/���	���#�(���������
�����
�.����
����������/�	��
���������
�����'�	��	������
���������	��������������
�
����$�	���	���	
$����
���$�

-��!���"��	�#

(���	���	����������
����
�	��	������

�����������	��	����������
�������
"�����

��������-������	��������
.���'�����	���������
-������
�2 ����������"�
	���
���	/�����
�	��
��!��	������

�
���
�-����

��	����	�������$��������	��
3�
���<����(���������	����
���������	�	�����'�
����

�'�����

���"�����
!��'��������'�	������

"�
	��
�����������
�2 
��
-�		����'�����

�����&3�
�������'����������	����
����

����
	��������

&���	�=�	�� 2 ��������
���������	
���������������	�

2 -�	�������
!���

��������������������������
.���(&>?/�	��-��	�����
������2 �
�	�������	����
��
	�����	��$��������"�
��

'��������&=,
�
���
	�����.��������/�

���
��	�	���

��������	����-�	'����
����	������
��������������

����
���������	
0�
�����

���������
	
"�����

����������	��������
�������-���'��
�	�����	�
	�������
�.��	���	
�!��'�
	�����������
������
���"�
-�	�������������
�'���
	�������,	���	��	/


������'�	��&3�
������������������
����
��� � ���
�


������4	�-����������"�
�������"���'����	�����
������	��	������'��

����	�����������		����
������	���	
��'���

���������

A named person, 

agency, charity, GP 

who holds 

responsibility and 

knowledge of their 

whole medical and 

social needs.

P
a
g
e

 6
1



���������
������������!����������������
����"�

�� �������	��������
�
�����!����=2%�����>�����

����������������������
������ ���

����������	��
��������������
���
��������������������������

?�����������
�����������������"�������@�������A������

�����

8�
���
�����
�����������>������	��!����������

���������2�����!��;��	������� "�������"��	����

�����"�>������������"���� ������

��������������������������������������������������������

��������
����������
�����

�����
��(��

��������
������������
���
�

P
a
g
e

 6
2



�����
�- ����!������"�����!�������"�
����������������

����������������������
��"���������
����������	���

�������
��������"�������!��������
�����	���������
������

������������������������"�����������!������
����!���

����������
������������������������������������������ �������

���
�������
��
���������!�
������� ������������������
�����������

���������	
�����
�����������������

��
�����	��
��������
���
��1 �����������
�$����(���/

�	
����	����
"������	����	"�(75��-���������	����7*�;����������

��� ����9-���

.����
���
�� ���������"�����������
����������
��

��
������������	����	��������"������������!��
"���������
�

�������������
���
�����
���������������
��	����������!������������"�

!���������
����������������������������� ������
�����

�����
��(��

��������
��
���

��������
���
��

P
a
g
e

 6
3



-�����������������������!�������������������
�����

����
��������
���
������
�����������������"�

��������!�������!�����
����������>����������
����

-��������������!��������!����������������� ���	�
��

�!���"����������	��!������"���������������� "����
�

������������������
����������������������

7��� �����!��	����!	����
�������������!�����������

������������������������������ ������!��

�����
��(��

��������
����������
���
��

P
a
g
e

 6
4



5�����!���������������������������
�������2�

• ��������!�������!���
��

• ���������	�����&�����������������

• ����������B������������ �����������������
� ���	��

�������
����������������

+���������������������

• �����������!��
��������������>�����
"�������������

	����������	��������������!��
�)���
��"����������

�����������������	�&���������������������	����

• ���������	��	������!�����������������������
����

���!��
"����������
�����	�������������8�������

��	����������� ���	���

+����>����������	����	�������� �

�����
��(��

���	�
	�����������
���
���/�

�
�	���
���

P
a
g
e

 6
5



• -���������������
���������������������!��������"�����!�

��	������"��������!�������������!������!��������

• 8������	��������������>����
���������������	���
���

������
��;������� ��!��������������������������������

����!����������������������������

• -�������������������	��������������������������������

• <�
���3������
�������
��
�������C!�����������������&��

• ,�����
����������������
�����������������

• 3�� �����������!����������B	�����!��
��������

�
�����������������
��
��������������
�	�#�	����������������!�

��������
�����������$������	
!�#�
���������
����
��������
��

���������������������	
�

������������������������������
��

����
�������!�����
����������	
���#���������������������������

�����
�������%&
����������!�'��%��

�����
��(��

�������������������

P
a
g
e

 6
6



4���!������
����������������"���������������
����
��������

�����
��������!��9-�����!�����������������

+�/�������������������
������������������������������
�

���!/���
�����������

+�

������������������������
����"����9-������

��������������������������������
��!������
�����

3�� ��������������
����	������������&��0�����
�������

������!������������������������������

#�	�������
�����!��������������������
��������(�����) *��&
��

��
�����������������������
���������	�������������	������
����	������


�����������
�������	���+��������������#�	����������*)����� �������!�

���������������������	
���#�����
������������
�������������	����

+&��������!����������
���
��������
��������������
���������

�$�������������	
���	�������������	
����
��	��������#�
�����������!�

����
�����������	
��������
�!��������������������
����
��������������

+!�������
������������������
��������#�	���������
����

�������

�
�����
�����������

�����
��(��

����
��
�����
�/��,��	�����
�

P
a
g
e

 6
7



• ?�������� ��?&
�0���������������� �"�	�
������������������
�

���C�	����	�
�	������
�����&������	��&��������

• 7����������
����������� �����/ �����������

• 3�� ������	�����������������������

• 4	�������������������������������������������!�����������

• ?�/	���������������������������1 ����������������������	��

�	��!��

#�
����
�����������
����������
���������	�����
�������
�!����

�
������
�����	��	�!������
�!��
�������#�������
����&
����
����

�����������	
����
�!��
���������	���,��������
������������#�

������$�������������
�!�
�����-&
�!�'����
�����������
����

	���������
����
�!������������!�����������
������������
����,�

D�	������E ���
�����
����
�

�����
��(��

����
����
������*�������
��


P
a
g
e

 6
8



$��
�������
�����������������������
��	�����
��!�
�

�������������
�������������
��!�����	����	�
���5	�
�

����������������!��	�
�	��������������������	�����������	��	�

��������	��"������
�������"����������
�����������	����	�����

�������������������������

.�	�#�
����������!��������
����������������������������

��
����������������
����	����������������������
���������/

�
�!�����'������������	
��������

+	��!����������������� �!���������������������������!"�

������
���"�������������"�����!�������������8�
���
���

����������	��!��!���������	���	�
��������������

����������������!�����!��������������>���
�������������

�����
��(��

����
����
������*�����

��
��


P
a
g
e

 6
9



8������	������!�����	����

����
������������

�������������������
�1 �������� �����	
�

$� ��!�����
������������
�������������������

����������������

-��������������!�!�
�������

����!���!B��

��������!����������������������

���
�
������	����	

9����������� ����������������������

����
�

�	��
������!�������


����
��������

P
a
g
e

 7
0



$0 ���
���
�����������
��(��

��0

"0 ����
������������
���
����
��
����- ����!������

����"�������������������������

����
�	����	�

���������

10 .		������������
��
���0

%0 �
�����
��	�-�
���	���
������
�����������

��
��	��0�

20 3��
����������
����
����������

������*��	���
��
��������
�
�,��$"���
���

P
a
g
e

 7
1



P
a
g
e

 7
2



4��

��&�
���

(
���2�����F	����	����	�����	�
��������� 

4��2�����	����	����	�����	�
��������� E

P
a
g
e

 7
3



P
a
g
e

 7
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



1 

 

Healthwatch Update 
January 2014 
 

Delivery against strategic aims: 

Governance - policies and procedures in place to ensure we meet our objectives in 
an open and transparent manner  

Understand and support – know what matters most to residents, especially those 
least included, by always starting with their needs and rights  

Influence - those who have the power to change services so they better meet the 
needs of users  

Lead - Healthwatch network to ensure local insight has an impact on services locally 

GOVERNANCE  

What Outcome do we want? 
Healthwatch Tower Hamlets:  

• has a form and structure that means it operates effectively. 

• understands its purpose and communicates this widely.  

• understands its duties and powers & external stakeholders understand the purpose 

• is clear about the respective roles of Board and senior staff. 

• manages public funds responsibly 
• is trusted by people who use health and social care services and by the public 
• influences commissioning plans  
What Actions have we takenin 2014? 

• HWTH registered as a charitable company. 

• Board and Committees established with agreed governance policies and procedures 
including financial procedures.  

• Advisory Group established to provide link and voice for the local community  

• Priority workstream areas established, priority projects developed and commissioned 
to voluntary and community sector providers. 

• Annual report set out key achievements/impacts reported to HWBB, HSP and CCG. 

• Initial awareness campaign as part of launch and ongoing input to VCS HWF  

• CCG HSCA 2012 Participation Duties report reflects Healthwatch impact. 

Have we achieved the outcomes above – what do we need to do? 

• Reflective Audit demonstrates that many stakeholders are still unclear about role and 
functions of HWTH 

• Stronger and clearer vision and strategic framework to be agreed Feb 2015  
• Stakeholder event late Feb 2015 to set out clear vision and strategy and to gather 
input into the priority work streams.  Also launch the new feedback website. 

• Agree longer term operational model and sustainability plan including income 
generation by April 2015 

• LBTH contract to be transferred from Urban Inclusion to Healthwatch April 2015 
• Another reflective audit May 2015 to assess if there is improvement 

Page 75



2 

 

 

Page 76



3 

 

UNDERSTANDING AND SUPPORT 

What Outcome do we want? 

• External stakeholders and the community understand the purpose of Healthwatch and 
are able to contact us for help and assistance 

• HWTH includes the seldom heard through proactive engagement 
• HWTH is accessible and inclusive 

What Actions have we takenin 2014? 

• launch and poster campaign, worked with VCS Health and Wellbeing Forum 
membership, patient leaders project, Barts Voices projects promoted 

• built a strong Enter and View programme with nearly 20 visits and a growing number 
of local people being trained and taking part in the visit programme.  Having a direct 
impact on specific services.  

• provided a range of platforms to obtain the views of people in Tower Hamlets about 
their needs for and experience of local care services e.g. community outreach, enter 
and view visits, online feedback, qualitative interviews, workshops and focus groups 

• worked with Tower Hamlets Friends and Neighbours to hear from Housebound and 
delivered patient experience evaluation of Integrated Care programme with frail 
elderly for the CCG.  

• Mental Health Task Group and Young Peoples Panel have worked on specific projects 
to gather views.   

• developing online user engagement tool (new website) that will target seldom heard 
(those not involved in community organisations or activities) 

• website is designed to reach the seldom heard – professionals, young people 

Have we achieved the outcomes above – what do we need to do? 

• Fairly poor awareness and understanding of HWTH from members of the community. 
Serious work is needed in promoting Healthwatch Tower Hamlets and we have 
invested a not inconsiderable amount of money in the website as a user engagement 
tool which we need to promote widely. Coms & Engagement Committee to work on 
further developing and promoting actions from the communications and engagement 
strategy following Board direction with high profile launch of the new website later in 
January. 

• Clearer strategy for working in partnership with the VCS Health and Wellbeing Forum.  
Suggestion that we look at Hackney model of working on joint intelligence gathering 
events and a Fund for Health grants programme (with CCG) to fund community 
research projects with seldom heard. 

• Undertake more community intelligence gathering events on key workstreams or 
groups e.g. integrated care or children and young people 

• Develop more case studies, patient X and qualitative research in key priority areas 
and from a cross section of the community. 
Expand information and signposting support over the phone, by email, through 
outreach sessions at premises of community groups, at Royal London Hospital, Idea 
Stores, lunch clubs, our events and by people coming directly to us, 

• Focus on involving patient leaders and local people in decisions about health and 
social care and choice in relation to aspects of those services. e.g. ensuring our work 
on integrated care influences the Integrated Care Programme, Better Care Fund, CHS 
procurement. 

• Development of patients who can develop co-commissioning models. 
• Strengthen our community intelligence database as a resource for collecting patient 
and user feedback which can be utilised effectively by our stakeholder partners to 
influence the commissioning and delivery of services.  

Page 77



4 

 

• more effective referral process and follow up of enter and view recommendations 

INFLUENCING 

What Outcome do we want 

• Systematically collecting views of diverse users AND the general public  

• Intelligence and evidence is heard at wide range of health & social care forums 

• JSNA and HWS developed strongly influenced by community views and priorities 

• Services change and improve to meet needs identified through JSNA and align with 
HWS. 

• A fit-for-purpose comprehensive local information and signposting system 

• HWTH effectively utilises VCS resources to obtain the views of the community, 
especially hard to reach; and influences local services to be inclusive of these groups. 

What Action have we taken in 2014 

• HWTH key member of the JSNA Reference Group, contributed to Pharmaceutical 
Needs Assessment 

• Commissioned nine organisations to carry out research in diverse Tower Hamlets 
communities looking at the experience of Barts Health services and housebound 
residents.   

• Patient Experience Feedback report provided to key stakeholders based on comments 
database 

• website will link to Idea Stores Directory to provide comprehensive signposting 
alongside up to date information on user experience.   

• Enter and View programme led to specific recommendations about how services could 
or should be improved  

Have we achieved the outcomes above – what do we need to do?  

• user and public voice item at the start of each HWB meeting 

• see Appendix 1 below for examples of impact on commissioning processes and 
services improvements  

• our views are included in JSNA Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

• need to ensure that people without access to ICT can access the signposting and 
feedback info on the website – link to existing information and advocacy services 

LEAD 

What Outcome do we want 

• HWTH is systematically networked with all sections of the community 

• Major changes are made in response to HWTH reports and evidence-based 
recommendations and associated Scrutiny reviews  

• HWTH is central to developing the community engagement strategy of the HWB and 
advises the HWB on innovative forms of engagement in its work. 

• HWB sees HWTH as an effective, authoritative, credible and influential voice for 
service users, the general public and the community and voluntary sector. 

What Action have we taken in 2014 

• Patient leaders project to recruit, up-skill, support and incentivise patient leaders to 
take part in commissioning, quality review and service design at a strategic level.  

• Young People’s Panel worked in three key areas; Shisha, diabetes and mental health 

• Report on Housebound residents, Integrated Care Report   

• HWTH commissioned nine organisations to carry out research in diverse Tower 
Hamlets communities looking at barriers to access and patient centred care.   

• working closely with VCS HWF to promote HW and to understand community needs 

• see below for examples of impact and changes as a result of HWTHs 

Page 78



5 

 

Have we achieved the outcomes above – what do we need to do?  

Objectives for 2015 

• need to ensure that patient leaders are developing and delivering their own projects 
effectively and are taking on patient rep roles.  Focus on integrated care including 
CHS and THIPP. 

• Suggested working in partnership with the HWF on community insight events and the 
community grant programme (in partnership with the CCG)  

• working to ensure that our commissioning and provider  partners are engaging with 
patients and users to co-produce and co-commission services 

• improve our reporting to HWB and HSP on the back of the new website infomatics 
tools 

• Work with CCG and HWF to undertake community intelligence gathering grant 
programme to become part of CCG’s formal consultation process feeding into 
commissioning intentions 

• working to ensure that our commissioning and provider  partners are engaging with 
patients and users to co-produce and co-commission services 

• reporting impact back to service users and the general public  
 

Delivering our priority work streams for 2015/16 

The following five workstream priorities were developed in response to local community 
feedback through surveys, comments collected from local residents and on commissioning 
plans and planning timeframes. This outlines the initial thinking around the development of 
the projects and they will be the subject of further development at our stakeholder event 
on the 6th of February. 2015 

 

Workstream 1: Older people living independently - integrated care 

Evidence Work   Progress Impact to date 

Top priority from 
survey at launch 
event.  Key priority 
for all local 
commissioners.   

Develop a network of 
VCS orgs with voice role 
to develop and support a 
group of patients and 
carers of users of 
integrated care services 
to take an ongoing role 
in the design, 
procurement, delivery 
and evaluation of the 
services.  

1st meeting 
facilitated with 
THIPP Nov 22nd. 
Working with 
Accelerate Patient 
Group.   

Redrafted letter & info 
for patients to improve 
understanding. 

• Co Chair Communications and Engagement Sub Group of HWB 

• escalated issues of concern to HWE around changes to GP contract 

• reported to CQC regarding issues with Barts Health  

Page 79



6 

 

 

Workstream 2 : Promoting co-production in mental health services  

Evidence Work  Progress Impact to date 

Priority 2 & 3 from 
community event 
were user led 
mental health 
services & 
community lead 
health solutions. 
Mental Health 
services currently 
being redesigned. 
Priority of Mental 
Health Task Group 

HW Mental Health Task 
Group (Community 
Options leading).   

Developing a clear 
definition of what 
we mean by co-
production. How to 
hold the CCG and 
ELFT to account in 
facilitating co-
production of 
mental health 
services in Tower 
Hamlets.  

 

Workstream3 : GP Access 

Evidence Work  Progress Impact to date 

Main issue that 
comes from 
community 
outreach feedback 

Healthwatch to gather 
public opinion on how 
GP access could be 
improved in Tower 
Hamlets. 

Linking into work by 
CSU and the GP Care 
Group Prime 
Ministers challenge 
fund bid to support 
better access to 
primary care.  

Improve access to GP 
practices in Tower 
Hamlets 

Workstream 4 : Improving the patient journey 

Evidence Work  Progress Impact to date 

HWTH Feedback 
Report shows 
patients see their 
care as a difficult 
journey that is hard 
to navigate & 
outside their 
control.  

Potential of art to 
present pictorial 
pathway of a patient 
journey setting out the 
emotional touch points 
and blockages. 
Develop case studies 
through qualitative 
interviews of the patient 
journey. 

-  art project brief 
finalised.  
- Piloted with 2 
patients.   
- meeting with 
stakeholders  
- exhibition of work 
with patient 
feedback 

 

Workstream 5 : Young people’s mental health 

Evidence Work  Progress Impact to date 

Outcome of 
engagement with 
the Healthwatch 
Youth Panel  

Look at the impact on 
mental health of the 
transition from being a 
child to being a young 
person particularly in 
Tower Hamlets.  What 
services are there to 
meet local need and 
what are the gaps. 

Intern undertaken 
desk based research 
with HWTH YP Panel 

1.  

Page 80



7 

 

 

Page 81



8 

 

HWBB – Health and Wellbeing Board  

HSP – Health Scrutiny Panel 

CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group 

VCS HWF – Voluntary and Community Sector Health and Wellbeing Forum  

JSNA – Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

HWS – Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

THIPP- Tower Hamlets Integrated Provider Partnership 

Other updates  
 
Premises  
We have secured ongoing premises at Mile End Hospital with a move to new offices within 
the same building. We are now able to put in place clearer signage and have our own 
separate entrance which will allow us to have a more high profile presence on site.  The 
office has been provided free of charge for the last three years but we will now be 
required to pay a £6,800 service charge.  
 
Signposting service and charity shop at Royal London Hospital 

We are in detailed negotiations with Barts about the placement of two portacabins 
on the Royal London Hospital site. Our aspiration for the space is: 

• To undertake community intelligence gathering through recording the 
experience of local people of both Barts services but also links to other 
health and social care providers 

• To provide a hub for local people to access information and signposting 
advice to enable them to navigate the health and social care system 
effectively  

• To operate a charity shop to raise income to support local community 
organisations and user groups to design and deliver their own health and 
social care services to both prevent and manage poor local health 

 
Appendix 1 Examples of Healthwatch Impact  
 
Review and re-design of Children’s Community Health Services– Healthwatch gathered 
patient feedback from parents that led to clearer service specifications for providers of 
services (Barts Health NHS Trust) setting out what should be delivered and how it would 
be measured.  The information is also currently being used to inform the re-commissioning 
of all Community Health Services in Tower Hamlets, with new contracts for services to be 
in place by October 2015. 
 
Quality in General Practice 
Healthwatch workshop attendees participated in voting exercises to give feedback on 
general practice and patient journey mapping to design the ideal patient journey through 
an episode of care in general practice. As a result of this feedback: 

• THCCG has commissioned solution-focused training aimed at GPs, to enable them to 
better listen and respond to the needs of their patients.   

• piloted micro-teams within several practices to ensure patients are repeatedly being 
seen by a health care professional who is familiar with their medical history..  

 
Review of walk in centres – Healthwatch undertook patient surveys on each site.  
Findings from these surveys along with the wider review findings will be used to develop a 
comprehensive communications and involvement plan for the next phase of the project. 
 

Page 82



9 

 

Healthwatch Mental Health Task Group have been involved in the Mental Health Service 
User Involvement Project - Continuous service user involvement in the design, 
management, review and delivery of the commissioning and provision of mental health 
services. 
 
Evaluation of the newly implemented Integrated Care Programme  
Semi-structured one-to-one interviews 35 patients or carers of patients who are using the 
new Integrated Care service.This evaluation will allow the people developing the 
programme to understand the experiences of those delivering and using these new 
services and will provide a firm basis for progression of the programme.  THCCG will 
ensure that the findings from this evaluation are used to make changes and develop the 
programme further and will be able to demonstrate how involving patients and the public 
in the evaluation of this programme has had this impact.  The programme will also 
develop its approach to PPI even further, working on the findings from this evaluation as a 
springboard to develop more ongoing and in-depth opportunities for people to become 
involved in the development and direction of this programme. 

 

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Patient and User Voice  

Summary Report 
August 2013 – September 2014

Page 85



 
 

2 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents 
 
 

1. Executive summary 3 

2. Introduction 5 

3. Key themes 6 

4. Under 5s and children 6 

5. Young people 9 

6. Adults 10 

7. Older people 27 

8. Recommendations 35 

 

Page 86



 
 

3 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. People in Tower Hamlets are generally satisfied with the services that they 
receive  

 
 

 
Healthwatch Survey Monkey feedback August 2014 

 
1.2. Where people were not happy with their care, it generally did not relate to the 

care itself,but was a frustration with the administration and processes that 
surrounded the care and/or because of the perceived attitudes of staff.  

 
1.3. There seemed to be a multitude of points in their care journey where the  

system failed patients and users including: 

 accessing a GP appointment 

 getting a referral from the GP to secondary care 

 receiving the correct appointment information at the right time  

 being able to change appointments without being sent back to the GP for re 
referral 

 patient transport getting them to their appointment in time so they didn’t 
have to go back to their GP for re referral   

 being able to find the clinic or ward they were attending 

 being seen promptly when they were at their appointment  

 the right medical notes/information/tests being available to clinicians at 
their appointment 

 actually getting into the operating theatre as operations are being 
cancelled or postponed at the last minute 

 waiting hours in the discharge lounge for a prescription to be filled after 
being discharged 

Page 87



 
 

4 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 arriving home again without necessary links to the district nurse, 
reablement, home adaption’s or social care and mental health support 
packages in place.  

1.4. There is a perception in some areas of staff being too few, being unhelpful, 
uncaring and unwilling to signpost.Some patients feel that staff are equally 
frustrated with administration problems and are either taking this frustration 
out on patients or using it as an excuse for a poor patient service.  There seems 
to be a particular issue with receptionists from across providers. The quality 
and availability of interpreters was also a frequently raised concern which 
seemed to exacerbate stress and/or medical conditions. 

 
1.5. Patient experience also seems to be heavily influenced by expectations and 

there appeared to be a ‘domino’ effect in the sense that when one element of 
care went awry, such as transport services, waiting for appointments or 
perceived rudeness, then it appeared likely that the whole patient experience 
became negative. We need to get a better understanding of the process that 
dictates experiences and the extent to which ‘expectations’ are dependent on 
demographic or other factors. 

 
1.6. These process issues not only lead to poor patient experience but patients feel 

they are wasting valuable NHS resources which they are being told are scarce.  
 

I have been waiting to have a gallstone operation for one year, when I finally 
got an appointment and booked my place for day surgery, I received a call to 

say that they needed to change my appointment due to it being double 
booked. Then when I got the confirmation appointment through the post, it 
was on a date that I did not agree with when the lady called to cancel. Finally 
when the surgery day arrived, I got there at 6.30am. At 7am the nurse told 
me that they cannot find me on the list and therefore I cannot have the 

surgery as they have too many patients. After two weeks, I got a letter home 
to say I missed my appointment (which I did not as I didn’t receive a letter in 
the first place) and that they have discharged me to my GP. Now I am waiting 
again for another referral to be made so I can get my gallstones out and go 
for the process all over again.  I find the process really bad, and I was angry 
and disappointed, frustrated about the whole thing. (Female, Bangladeshi - 

Barts Voices, Stifford Centre) 

Page 88



 
 

5 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

1.7. There is an evident demand for more ‘individualised’ care particularly with 
reference to ‘older people’ and families with children. This also needs to be 
linked to better communication both directly to patients but also between 
primary and secondary care and between different departments.  

 
1.8. Clearly we need to see a radical improvement to the administration and 

appointments systems alongside training/re training of staff on providing a 
patient focused service. We would also like to see measures in place to monitor 
whether improvements are having an impact on patient experience outcomes.   
 

1.9. More in depth work is required to understand the: 

 patient journey and the nature of the need for ‘support’ services within 

provision particularly for the elderly and the young. 

 ‘expectations’ and the determinants within that including demographic 

factors 

 ‘quality care’ among different cohorts of patients and the factors that 

contribute to ‘good’ care 

 experiences of those groups who appear underrepresented in our work to-

date e.g. Eastern European groups and sub-groups, Somali’s 

 

2. INTRODUCTION 

2.1. A core function of Healthwatch Tower Hamlets is to obtain the views of local 
people about their need for and experience of local care services and make 
those views known to those involved in the commissioning, provision and 
scrutiny of care services.  

 
2.2. This report summarises key themes that have emerged from the patient and user 

views gathered by Healthwatch Tower Hamlets during 2013-2014. These views 
were gathered through the following activities:  

 
2.3. Barts Health Patient Voices Project:  This project was designed to enable local 

community groups to collect patient feedback on behalf of Healthwatch. The 
feedback obtained focused upon the services of the Royal London Hospital, Mile 
End Hospital, the London Chest Hospital and Community Health Services all of 
which come within the remit of Barts Health.  The Project took place between 
March and August 2014 and involved the following community groups.  Full 
details are available in the Appendices. 

 Limehouse Welfare Association (LWA) 
 Tower Hamlets Friends and Neighbours (THFN) 
 Collective of Bangladeshi School Governors (CBSG) 
 Stepney Wisdom Group - Social Action for Health (SAFH)  
 Globe Wisdom Group - Social Action for Health (SAFH)   
 Stifford Centre 
 Deaf Plus 

Page 89



 
 

6 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 East London Vision (ELVIS) 
 
2.4. Enter and View visits which have taken place on a regular basis over the past 

year.  Healthwatch Tower Hamlets Board members are responsible for agreeing 
the Enter and View programme and take into consideration: 

 Concerns raised by patients and the public  
 Areas currently the subject of service redesign or re/de commissioning  
 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment priorities and gaps 
 Services from across the physical and mental health and social services. 

(full detailsof each visit can be seen in the Appendices) 
 

2.5. GeneralCommunityFeedback 
 General outreach at community events and gathering points  
 Members’ feedback via attendance at Advisory Group and other 

Healthwatch meetings 
 Responses to online questionnaires  
 People who phone or come into the office for information and signposting 

to services 
(a full database of comments collected can be requested from 
Healthwatch) 
 

Please note that there is a fuller version of this report that includes more 
detailed user feedback as well as enter and review reports and survey 
information.  Please contact info@healthwatchtowerhamlets if you would 
like to be sent a copy.   

3. KEY THEMES 

3.1. All comments were collated and explored for key themes and patterns in 
preparation for this report. It is important to note that the methods of 
collection and methodology of each piece of work varied. Full details of each 
source and the methodologies used can be requested from Healthwatch and it 
would also be possible to browse through the entire comments database if 
requested. 

 
3.2. There were, similar to last year, key themes that emerge from the range of 

comments across the sources. The data is organised by life-stage and 
subsequently by themes.  Interestingly, almost all of the themes cut across life-
stages. Certain issues relating to GPs, Dental Surgeries and services for those 
with complex needs as well as those with mental health issues have, where 
appropriate, been discussed separately within the section on Adults 
 

4. UNDER 5s AND CHILDREN 

4.1. It was clear that at one level there was great appreciation of the services that 
were received by families. 

Page 90



 
 

7 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

My son is two years old and had been having tonsillitis problems for over a 
year now. So then he was referred by our GP to the RLH to get his tonsils 
removed. As we arrived at the children’s department for pre admission the 
receptionist was welcoming and helpful.  The environment was very child 
friendly. We didn’t wait long before we were seen by a doctor. After he 
explained the procedure of the surgery and reassured us that it would be ok 
and sent home after a few hours. The doctor gave us opportunity to ask 
questions that was very important for us. We asked is there a possibility 
anything going wrong.  The doctor gave us some leaflets for us to read 
through. It feels good that we had met the doctor before surgery it is very 
reassuring and made us feel that our son would be in safe hands. I believe that 
the children service is at good standard and does not need improvements 
(Parent of Female, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, SAfH) 

 
4.2. However, in some cases, the actual care appeared to be questioned; 
 The appointment letter came very quickly and she was seen in the Clinic by an 

Ophthalmologist.  Prior to seeing an Ophthalmologist she was seen by Nurses 
to have drops in her eyes in order for tests to be carried out. Considering they 
are working in a Children’s Department I expected them to be more 
understanding and reassuring towards children. My daughter was afraid to 
have the drops in and they were rushing me to hold her down as there were 
other patients waiting. They did have to hold her down as the eye drops causes 
stinging she was struggling to get free. I just feel they could be more 
welcoming and reassuring towards my daughter so she wouldn’t feel afraid, 
same goes for all children. The tests were done quickly although the waiting is 
a very long time. The Ophthalmologists are lovely; very welcoming and always 
spoke to my daughter regarding her care and problems. They do a brilliant 
job. The nurses could be more considerate and understanding towards my 
daughter. The waiting is far too long  (Parent, Female, Bangladeshi – Barts 
Voices, Stifford Centre – Opthamology) 

 
4.3. It appeared that a recurrent problem was the lack of information given to 

patients and poor communication.  

 The Consultant called us through and I sat and briefly explained the problem. 
The Consultant very quickly looked down my son’s throat and concluded that 
he will need a tonsillectomy. I was given a leaflet to go home and read about 
tonsillectomies and the whole consultation lasted for no more than 5 minutes. 
I was very shocked that the consultant had reached a conclusion without doing 
any form of examination. Though it is only a tonsillectomy, it is still an 
operation that carries risks just like any other operation. It seemed strange 
that the consultant reached such a drastic conclusion without actually 
examining my son or carrying any other tests to see if there was an alternative 
that we could try first. So I would like to have seen a thorough investigation 
on my son before giving the option of an operation. Secondly I feel that the 
Consultant should have spent a few minutes explaining the procedure and the 
risks to me and even answer some of the frequently asked questions, rather 
than just giving me a leaflet to read at home. A tonsillectomy may seem like a 
trivial thing to a medic but for me and my child it is still a big deal (Parent of 
Male, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, SAfH) 

 

Page 91



 
 

8 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

4.4. At times, there was also evidence of poor communication between primary and 
secondary care: 

 My son had been complaining of consistent migraines that I had gone and seen 
my GP about. My GP referred us to the hospital for a CT scan. When we went 
to the appointment the consultant refused to do a scan on the basis that the 
GP had failed to provide sufficient information. I had taken my son out of 
school and felt that the day was a waste of everyone’s valuable time. We then 
had to go back to the GP who wrote another letter explaining in full why my 
child needed a scan. We then had to wait a fortnight or so for another (Parent 
of Male, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project – SAfH) 

 
4.5. Often, too, a good number of the difficulties families encountered tended to be 

those that involved administration including the often long waiting times to be 
seen by a medical professional both in planned and in unplanned care. Further, 
when there was a hold-up, staff were seen, at times, to be particularly 
unhelpful: 

 I was quite disappointed with my appointment as this was the second time 
they did not have my child’s files. We were waiting for over an hour where our 
appointment was at 9:15 and did not get seen until 10:30 because they could 
not locate the file. When they finally did see me, there was no apology or 
anything. If I was late for an appointment, they wouldn’t have seen me. Prior 
to my appointment, the files etc. should have been located and ready for me 
to be seen on time. In general, the waiting room was tidy and clean. The 
receptionist could have been friendlier; but that’s the usual with hospital 
receptionists – not approachable and communication skills are poor. (Parent, 
Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre – ENT Department) 

 
4.6. In addition, staff were also often considered to be unhelpful, particularly when 

directing patients appropriately: 

 I received my child’s appointment through the post after my GP referred us to 
the ENT department. My son was suffering from tonsillitis that several doses 
of antibiotics had not cleared up. Once I got to the RLH I found that the ward 
was not sign posted and I didn’t know which lift to take. So I went to one of 
the reception desks on the ground floor. I was directed to a lift and told to go 
to the 6th floor. In order to get to the correct lift I had a long walk with a 
child that didn’t want to come to the hospital and was dragging his heels. 
When I got to the 6th floor the receptionist told me that I had come to the 
wrong place. I was then directed to the 7th floor. By then I had a child that 
was screaming and I found that all of this was very stressful and unnecessary 
had the place been well signposted (Parent of Male, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices 
Project, SAFH) 

 
4.7. There were also criticisms of the environment in which families found 

themselves and the facilities available: 

 The clinic itself is quite small, not enough seats for so many people who were 
waiting with their children. There were two or three toys and a TV.  The clinic 
was clean and tidy which I liked… If there aren’t enough seats to provide for 
patients to sit down in the clinic surely something must be wrong; either too 
many people are booked in or they need a bigger clinic with more doctors 
(Parent of Female, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices, Stifford Centre – Opthamology) 

Page 92



 
 

9 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 

5. YOUNG PEOPLE 

5.1. Once people move into the next ‘life stage’, it appears one of the largest 
difficulties became waiting for appointments and the long waiting times.  A 
number felt that this was due to inadequate staffing 

 The reason they gave me as to why I had to wait very long time that they were 
understaffed. I was not very happy with the service because I feel due to the 
shortage of staff there is often a lack of appointment slots available that 
delay my child’s follow up appointments (Male, 16-18, Bangladeshi – Barts 
Voices Project, LWA,  Orthopaedics, Royal London Hospital) 

 
5.2. More pertinently, long waiting times, not simply for appointments and waiting to 

be seen but equally for prescriptions, gave the impression of a lack of care for 
patients 

 I found it extremely difficult to get an appointment – I had to wait one month. 
The doctor explained my current health state to me very well.  Staff attitude 
overall was good but the nurses were a little rude which I recognised when 
they answered my questions.  As a suggestion for an improvement I would say 
that there should be more appointments available so there would be more 
convenient dates and nurses need to be given more training on patients’ care 
(Female, 19-21, White British – Enter and  View A&E) 

 
5.3. This could also be exacerbated by staff who were perceived as being rude and 

simply uncaring. One mother described how she had gone to A&E with her son 
who had cut his hand.  Her GP’s receptionist advised her to go to A&E but, on 
arrival, the triage nurse had been rude and dismissive assumingly because it 
was an unnecessary visit.  Another young woman described her visit to A&E in 
the following terms: 

 Staff attitude overall was good, but the nurses were a little rude which I 
recognised when they answered my questions, when I  asked a receptionist 
when will I be seen by the doctor he replied saying “I do not know, the doctor 
knows” in a very ignoring manner  (Male, 19-21, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices 
Project, CBSG) 

 
5.4. Perhaps a more important and underlying issue was that diagnoses appeared to 

have been slow for a number of patients who had less common conditions. 

 My 15 year old son suffers from a condition known as Overlap Multiple 
Syndrome. Initially the GP ignored his condition and as a result of poor care he 
had to go into accident and emergency on several occasions. Then when his 
health started to further deteriorate and worsen he went into A&E again and 
was hospitalised for a few months. He had to pass trauma and stress, and 
mentally suffered. GPs and doctors often initially said his health was nothing 
of a concern; they didn’t really pay much attention to his symptoms I think 
doctors should be more prompt in getting to the root of the problems, taking 
full body checks rather than just prescribing medicines and dismissing the 
conditions, symptoms and patients concerns. I am overall unhappy with overall 
service my son received as his diagnosis was delayed. The catastrophic journey 
he passed is unforgettable and we strongly suggest the professional should 

Page 93



 
 

10 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

look into the issue earlier rather later to save patients life (Parent of 13-15 
year old, Male, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project CBSG) 

 
5.5. The issue of interpreters also arose: 

I often accompany my son to his appointment as he is under 16 and usually I 
speak on his behalf regarding his eczema, however as I cannot speak fluent 
English I require an interpreter but there are usually no interpreters available 
and this means the quality of the service is poor and the lack of 
communication with the doctor could affect my son’s condition in some ways  
(Parent of 13-15 year old, Male, Bangladeshi– Barts Voices Project, LWA – 
Dermatology) 

 
5.6. But for some the care was good: 

 Access to information regarding treatment is excellent – I can contact my 
doctor or specialist via phone to ask any questions or discuss any concerns I 
have fairly easily (Female,  16-18, Bangladeshi – Barts Voice Project, LWA, 
Epilepsy Sufferer)  

 

6. ADULTS 

6.1. A striking feature of the comments collected with regard to the ‘adult’ life-stage 
was that there was a lack of consistency within a patient’s journey often 
leading to unfulfilled expectations and dashed hopes. The following comment 
refers to a labour experience but it reflects the sense of dissatisfaction, 
evident in so many experiences and journeys, that appears to have been 
caused by the lack of consistency in what seems to each individual as ‘good 
care’.     

 I gave birth at Royal London six months ago. I was very disappointed in the 
consistency of the care I had throughout my labour. It is worth noting that the 
rooms and facilities were great and many of the staff were professional and 
supportive especially the trainees. However, I was truly shocked by some of 
the staff whose care I was under. I had one midwife who was extremely rude 
and made my birthing experience become quite negative. She did not 
introduce herself or ask how I was feeling at any stage. She did not explain 
why I had to be connected to the monitor for so long (2.5 hours when it should 
be a half an hour) which prevented me from sleeping. She laughed at my birth 
plan and when I asked for toilet paper at 2am she said 'That’s not my job'. My 
partner had to source it from another room and leave me during the labour. I 
asked for paracetemol as pain relief and it wasn't received until after two 
hours. There was no explanation for this, it was merely placed on the tray. I 
felt extremely nervous and vulnerable as a new mother once I was in the care 
of this person. Up until then I was treated very well and felt confident. I broke 
down in tears when the doctor came in in the morning and explained to them 
what had happened. She said that she was not surprised to hear that as I 
wasn't the first woman to complain about her. It really shocked me that 
someone known amongst their colleagues to be incapable of being a caring 
professional was working with women in labour. I refused to take a second 
round of induction gel because I did not trust the woman who made me feel so 
bad to put her hand inside my body. You might appreciate that this also 

Page 94



 
 

11 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

dragged out my whole labour and subsequently affected my decision making 
after as I had not slept the whole night in her care.  

 
After the birth I had absolutely no help and was thankful to have my mum and 
partner there as I had had an emergency c section and was unable to leave the 
bed. Any time I rang the bell I waited for so long and nobody offered to help. 
The staff seemed to busy filling out paper work. One nurse even said that she 
then had to enter the notes into a computer system and was complaining 
about doubling the work. The advice I was given too with regards feeding my 
baby and dressing her etc was all conflicting. This advice was also only given 
when I asked for it having nearly given up on breastfeeding. Some medical 
professionals should clearly not be working. However, there were some 
fantastic staff and I had two student midwives who were absolutely lovely and 
made me feel a lot better than their more experienced colleagues. (Female, 
26-30, White Other – Survey Monkey Feedback) 

 
6.2. Further, when patient journeys did not run smoothly, it appeared that the 

problem was not simply that there was inefficiencies with appointments but 
that there was a far more systemic issue and the cases below did not appear to 
be isolated ones 

 In my experience waiting times have been a nightmare- when arriving early for 
appointment and still not seen on time especially when being penalised if 
you’re  five minutes late you would think they would give you the same 
courtesy in return. The waiting area is too ‘intimate’ for my liking and at 
times stuffy. I don’t want to leave with more illnesses than what I first came 
in for! Accessing interpreting services can be difficult. When getting in touch 
with the advocacy service it can be a long wait before getting any 
confirmation. Reception staff to organise advocacy services and should be 
their doing. They should be more flexible with their time especially when 
there’s a long wait for the next appointment. They need to look at quality of 
care across the board rather than people feeling like a statistic they need to 
do away with as soon as they get through the door. Receptionists should be 
more friendly and be trained to speak to patients in a nicer way as they are 
the first point of contact whether face to face or over the phone. I’ve found a 
lot of the receptionists to be quite cold and patronising especially when 
speaking with people who don’t speak English fluently- talk about the lack of 
training in taking the non-judgemental approach! (Male, 33-40, Bangladeshi – 
Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre – Diabetes Screening) 

 
6.3. It was thus notable for patients when everything appeared to run smoothly as it 

had for these patients: 

 I have been registered with this practice for the past twenty-two years and 
generally very happy with the service and treatment I get here. This is my first 
visit after a two year absence. I am happy with the way the receptionist spoke 
to me over the phone and also very happy that I was offered an appointment 
within two days of making the call. In the past I was always happy with the 
way the dentist explained the treatments and costs and I hope that this will 
the same this time around. I find the environment friendly and welcoming and 
receptionists are also friendly. If I need interpreting support the frontline 

Page 95



 
 

12 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

staff always offer to help. (Female, Bangladeshi – Abbey Dental Practice, Enter 
and View visit) 

 
 All the care we received in A&E was good. The Doctors were efficient and 

informed us of what they were doing and if it didn’t work what they would do 
next  (Female, 51-59, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, SAfH, Eye Clinic, RLH) 

 
X is my main Consultant. Over the years I have built a good rapport with him. I 
find that he is welcoming; he always greets me and calls me out by my name. 
He explains in simple terms what is happening to me and how my treatment is 
going. My Consultant contacts me directly by phone or email to inform me of 
test results and any changes in my medication. I feel that he trusts my 
judgement and is willing to try what I suggest. I have an open relationship 
with him and feel free to speak my mind (Female, 41-45, Bangladeshi – Barts 
Voices Project, SAfH, Renal Department)  

 
6.4. As with all other categories, the seeming lack of appointments and the long 

waiting times to be seen were an issue. Low numbers of staff were frequently 
seen as a key factor. 

 I visited the Bethnal Green chest hospital on the 14th of April due to my heart 
problem. I did not find booking this appointment very easy and had to wait 
over two weeks for it. I had to wait very long to be called by the doctor which 
was very disappointing and I had to go in to work a little late. I booked for 
interpreting services and was given an interpreter but not all the times are 
interpreters available (Female, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, LWA) 

 
6.5. From the present evidence, this seemed to be a  particular issue with A&E: 

 My experience at the RLH (A&E) was really outrageous. I went to the 
emergency department as I had an agonising pain in my fingers. I went in at 
9pm and left the department by 3am in the morning. The waiting time was so 
long I was in pain frustrated then told by the receptionist that there were only 
two doctors available. I would suggest to have more doctors at night duties or 
have them on call if it is really busy to reduce waiting time (Male, 31-35, 
Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project – Stifford Centre  

 
 I was taken by ambulance to A&E at 11pm and was finally seen by a doctor at 

roughly 4am. When I asked why there was such a delay the receptionist said 
that there are many patients to be seen however there were hardly any – only 
me and another 2 people. There was also only one doctor on shift and I don’t 
know whether this was because it was night but it is truly disappointing as 
people come to A&E for emergencies and it is not good if there are no medics 
and doctors to treat them and see to them (Male, 41-45, Bangladeshi – Barts 
Voices Project, LWA)  

 
6.6. Delayed appointments were also perceived to have adverse effects on the 

patients’ health: 

 But to have the tests sometime it was very difficult for me to get an 
appointment. Due to this many of my appointments were delayed.  Also the 
delay to my diagnosis had adverse effects on my health (Male, 46-50, 
Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project CBSG)  

Page 96



 
 

13 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 
6.7. Not surprisingly, frustration with GP surgeries in trying to obtain appointments 

was equally common and this seemed to be an issue with most surgeries: 
 

 Getting an appointment is difficult; recently they have changed the 
appointment system, now you have to call the surgery and the reception staff 
takes your details and then gets a nurse or a GP to call you back, it’s a hassle 
as you have to wait around for a long time before someone calls you back...on 
the last occasion when the GP called back she decided that I did not have to be 
seen urgently, however I felt I needed to be seen sooner… the previous ‘walk-
in’ system was also not very good as there was long queues that could go 
outside of the practice and by the time you got to the front of the queue all 
the appointments would be gone. I would prefer if they just had a traditional 
appointment system where you just call in and speak to reception staff and 
they offer you an appointment. Also it takes forever for the surgery to pick up 
the phone, on the last occasion it nearly took 25 minutes.  Female, 22-25, 
Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit, Harford Health Centre) 

 
 It can be quite difficult to get an appointment here, usually 3-4 days. If it’s an 

emergency, you can request for a telephone consultation and the doctor calls 
back you to assess if you should be seen and offers an appointment time and 
date. I called in today and requested an emergency appointment; the doctor 
called me back within 20 minutes and offered an appointment for today (Male, 
31-35, Other – Enter and View visit, Wapping Health Centre) 

 
6.8. Adapting to a new appointment system additionally seemed to cause problems 

for patients. 

 I don’t like this new triage appointment system, even though I spoke to a 
nurse on the day I called in, I was offered the appointment two weeks later 
(which is today), also we had to wait the whole day for the nurse to call back, 
we would have preferred a time slot for calling back. We would like a normal 
appointment system where receptionists can offer appointments and also we 
would like to be seen within 2-3 days. ..  My husband waited 1.5 weeks to get 
an appointment, when he turned up, they told him that there was no rooms 
available for doctors consultation, although there was a doctor there was no 
rooms available for him to see patients…how strange…they said he had to 
make another appointment, but reception staff refused to offer him a new 
appointment and said my husband had to call back…he was very upset as he 
had waited a 1.5 weeks to get this appointment and take time off work and 
through no fault of his own they decide to cancel the appointment , but on top 
of that they refused to offer a new appointment… after a bit of arguing with 
the receptionists about all this,  the nurse came out and offered him this 
appointment (Female, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit – Harford 
Health Centre) 

  
 I don’t like the new appointment system of calling back; sometimes you can 

wait for ages before you receive the phone call by the doctor. I prefer the old 
‘walk in’ system; it was much faster in the sense of getting to see a doctor 
sooner.  (Female, 22-25, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit – Harford Health 
Centre) 

Page 97



 
 

14 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 
6.9. Some patients related the difficulties with appointments to potentially 

unnecessary A&E visits 

 Getting an appointment at this surgery is very difficult, it seems like they are 
not bothered or care about patient’s wellbeing. I don’t feel it’s right that a 
doctor should decide whether you should be seen by talking to a patient on the 
phone, not everyone can explain things properly, then there is also language 
issues…also it takes a long time to get a call back i.e. 5-6 hours and when they 
finally call you, they offer you an appointment after two weeks…this is the 
reason why some patients end up going to hospital or A&E (Male, 31-35, 
Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit, Harford Health Centre) 

 
6.10. It was also extremely frustrating for patients across the system not to be able to 

contact the relevant people. 

 I was referred to the physio department by my GP for my back. The timing of 
the appointment wasn’t suitable, so I called the department. The receptionist 
stated that if I wanted to reschedule they don’t have any appointments till a 
few months and they are fully booked. She informed me that I wasn’t able to 
book two months in advance anyway. The receptionist also informed me to 
keep the appointment and phone closer to the time to re-arrange. 
Furthermore, she added that if I cancel the appointment I will be taken off 
their system!! Closer to the time of the appointment, I called the department 
but no one picked up. For that whole week, not one person picked the phone 
up. I sent an email to address my issues but haven’t heard from anyone to hear 
of rescheduling of the appointment. It’s been 6-7 months!!!! I now have to 
wait to be referred by the GP AGAIN and wait to hear from them Of 
course!!!!!!! There has to be an efficient and effective service. One should be 
able to re-arrange their appointment without having to be discharged!! 
(Female, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre) 

 
6.11. A further view was that text messages were just not appropriate for contacting 

patients and it was suggested that an appointment system that could be 
accessed on-line might work well. 

 I wasn’t happy with the text message reminder sent. It has no detail as to 
where or what department the appointment is for. It also does not state the 
name of the patient. This is confusing for myself as to whom the appointment 
is for myself or my children. And also I am under treatment for several 
appointments so how would I know whether it’s for example a physio or 
dermatology appointment. In order for the text message to be helpful it needs 
to include; patient’s name and department for the appointment as well as 
times (Female, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre) 

 
6.12. Cancelling, particularly, at short notice could also be highly problematical for 

patients 

 I had an appointment before Christmas, and they cancelled this appointment 
on the day of the appointment, apparently the thing that needed to be placed 
in my teeth had not been delivered...this late notice was a problem for me as 
I had taken some time off work to attend the appointment, I feel they could 
have told me this information the day before and I could have gone to work. 
Furthermore they did not make me another appointment, I had to chase them 

Page 98



 
 

15 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

up to get this appointment...I feel if they cancel an appointment they should 
take the initiative to make another appointment for patients. Also staff 
should look at patient records the day before appointments to make sure 
everything is in place for the next day, if not, this will give them an 
opportunity to notify patients earlier about any cancellations... (Male, 31-35, 
Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit, Abbey Dental Practice) 

 
 After a long wait we were given an appointment in May but then we received a 

letter of cancellation and another giving us an appointment in June. My mum’s 
condition has been unbearable for some time so the change in dates did not 
help (Female, 51-59, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project - Stifford Centre)  

 
6.13. More generally, in direct contrast to patient experiences of obtaining 

appointments in much of provision, at dental surgeries it was a different 
picture. It was interesting to note that obtaining appointments appeared not 
merely just part of an overall experience but a very critical one: 

 I’ve been registered with Abby Dental Practice for seven years now and my 
experience so far has been positive. I was given a next day appointment as I 
was in pain and I am very happy about that. The receptionists are very friendly 
and also very professional over the phone. I think the environment is relaxing, 
welcoming and safe.  I am usually happy with the explanation of the 
treatment and the service I receive from my dentist, however I last visited the 
dentist only eight weeks ago and now I am back with severe pain, I feel I 
should have had an X-ray during my last visit and this would have probably 
prevented me from coming here again and enduring the pain I am in now. 
Overall, I am happy with this practice and would happily recommend it to 
others (Female, 22-25, White/Black Caribbean – Enter and View visit, Abbey 
Dental Practice) 

 
6.14. Co-ordination of information was an area of concern that arose for patients 

across provision particularly those with long-term conditions. 
 

 I visited a number of different health services throughout last year – 2013, 
including angiogram, x-ray, ECG, blood test, Accident & Emergency and also 
optical. I also visited the A&E more recently this year – June 2014. However as 
improvements to the service I would suggest a coordinated information system 
to be implemented as I found myself having to repeat myself many times to 
several doctors, which is exhausting and frustrating (Female, 51-59, 
Bangladeshi, Barts Voices Project, LWA) 

 
6.15. Communication between departments and different service providers was also 

frequently seen to be poor.  

 I have had lower abdomen pains for some time now and after visiting the 
gynae department I found out that I have ovarian cysts. The cysts are regularly 
monitored to check they don’t grow too big so I go for ultrasound scans on a 
regular basis. When the letter arrived for my January appointment I noticed 
something different. This time they wrote in the letter that I have to fast 
from mid-night and my appointment was late in the afternoon. So I found it 
strange that they’d never asked me to fast before and why they had given me 
an afternoon appointment if they require me to fast. The letter also stated 

Page 99



 
 

16 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

this was my final scan. When I arrived for my appointment I went to the 
reception desk.  When I was called through by the sonographer she too was 
surprised that I had been asked to fast and said this was not necessary. This 
made me really angry that I had been put through such hardship the whole day 
on a clerical error. After having the scan, previously I have asked the 
sonographer for details of the scan and they have always told me that I need 
to speak with my GP to discuss the results. Also often I wasn’t informed that 
my GP has my scan results but has not called me in to discuss them. Contrary 
to my previous appointments, this time the sonographer asked me why I had 
been discharged from the clinic as my cysts had actually started to grow. After 
informing my GP of this information he has now referred me back to the clinic 
again. There seems to be little communication between the Gynae Department 
and my GP. It seems to me that rather than communicating direct that I am 
the ‘go-between’ that is passing information in both direction (Female, 36-40, 
Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, SAfH) 

 
6.16. It was also common to hear requests for continuity of care, especially when 

pregnant: 

 I always get to see a different midwife, I would prefer to see the same one, I 
feel I keep repeating myself, which is frustrating and also due to the changes 
of midwifes you don’t get the opportunity to know someone better or feel 
comfortable around them (Female, 22-25, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit – 
Harford Health Centre) 

 
6.17. An integral part of the dissatisfaction reported appeared to be the attitude of 

staff towards patients particularly those who worked in reception areas. 

 I can only begin with my first impressions of the service I received at 
reception, which is in my opinion at the forefront of a duty of care. It was my 
first visit at the hospital, hence I was somewhat worried if I would find my 
way round. I stopped at the main reception on the ground floor. Assuming that 
I was at the right place I approached the lady sitting at the desk and informed 
her I was here for my dermatology appointment. Without a helpful smile or 
any sense of attention towards me, she vaguely gave somedirections. I ended 
up in the wrong department. I went back to the main reception feeling 
flustered. The same lady was there and she had the same attitude. She 
questioned my knowledge of English and was very rude. Without looking up she 
told me to go back up. At that point I was not feeling calm at her lack of help 
and went to find the right department myself. The manners and people skills 
the receptionist lady displayed to me that day was appalling.. (Female, 26-30, 
Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre) 

 
 The receptionist was very rude, and didn’t seem to be interested in helping 

me. There were two at the reception; they spent 10-15 minutes chatting 
before they acknowledged me (Female, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices 
Project, Stifford Centre, A&E)  

 
6.18. But it was clearly not only reception staff that came in for criticism: 

 Also the night ward staff especially the nurses behave very rudely, and this 
needs to be addressed…The nurses need to be appropriately trained.  (Male, 
26-30, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, CBSG) 

Page 100



 
 

17 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 
 Staff in 8B were very rude, did not come when I pressed the buzzer, would not 

let my husband come and translate for me nor did they give or offer a 
translator. When I was given IV Fluids, saline, when it ran out the staff were 
supposed to give me another but when my husband informed them the nurse 
replied ‘don’t tell me how to do my job’, the staff on this ward were very 
unprofessional (Female, 26-30, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, Stifford 
Centre)  

 
 I was admitted to the Royal London Hospital, during the night the ward was 

very short staffed and I had to wait a very long time and ask at least three 
times for medication. I feel that more staff are needed during the night to 
ensure a good level of care for all patients (Female, 41-45, White British – 
Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre)  

 
6.19. Those who had experienced the maternity services were often particularly 

dissatisfied with the way in which they had been treated. 

 For my first appointment when I became pregnant with my son, I was made to 
wait for 10 minutes to queue in order to sign in at reception. It was really hot 
and there was not enough seating for the amount of people that were there. 
In general, the space was very small and confined. Reception staff were less 
than helpful and had bad attitude. They were talking amongst themselves 
whilst being approached by patients. It’s very rude not to be acknowledged 
whilst trying to ask for some help especially if that is the requirement of their 
job role. Reception staff need to be more helpful and willing to direct assist 
patients when needed. The air in the waiting area should be more regulated 
and the seat should be more comfortable and more seats made available to 
accommodate for everyone in the waiting area (Female, 22-25, Other - Barts 
Voices Project, Stifford Centre) 

 
 The experience I had during the birth of my first baby was awful. I never 

thought anyone could be treated in such a way especially when under such 
circumstances. The staff nurse I had to unfortunately deal with on my ward 
during my stay there did not have any customer/patient care skills and found 
her to be short and abrupt with me whenever I spoke with her to the point 
where I thought she had an issue with me. I spoke with one of the other new 
mothers on my ward and soon came to realise that this was just the nurses’ 
nature. I don’t understand why people who have no compassion and clearly 
cannot empathise with their patients/people they are dealing with on a day to 
day basis; they should not be working as front line staff if they do not have 
the right attributes for it. They should really look into this before hiring 
miserable staff! The waiting period when asking for something that was 
needed I found was quite lengthy and nurses would say they were busy as they 
had other patients to tend to and would take their sweet time before 
returning to see what the matter was in the first place. My birth plan was 
discarded and was not taken into consideration at all. I was a new mother 
treated very unfairly! (Female, 26-30, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, 
Stifford Centre) 

 

Page 101



 
 

18 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 The first nurse who started the process of inducing me was very unfriendly and 
showed little emotions towards me. She continued to do her work robotically 
with a lack of empathy towards me and my hip condition. The second nurse 
was wonderful. She connected with me and was very empathetic towards me. 
She continued to ask how I was and whether I needed anything. She also made 
suggestions as to how I can make myself more comfortable. She went and got 
me more pillows and would wet my lips with water as I was nil-by-mouth in 
case I needed a C-section. She asked after me and showed genuine concern for 
me and my well-being...When I was taken to the post natal ward I was faced 
yet again by cold, unsympathetic nurses who tried to push me into things 
without explanation such as giving me medication and just telling me to take 
them. I need to know what it is I’m taking and why it is that I’m taking it. I 
didn’t appreciate being treated like cattle! They would also do crazy things 
like just come without warning and switch the lights off. So I’ll be doing 
something like changing by baby and before I know it we were in darkness. It 
wouldn’t hurt them to be a bit nicer to people (Female, 40-45, Bangladeshi – 
Barts Voices Project, SAfH, Maternity Ward) 

 
 The head nurse was ridiculous, attacking every new mother verbally. The 

other nurses were very polite and helpful. But they were very under 
staffed…they need more staff on duty to take care of vulnerable mothers. It is 
important that mother’s needs are met at all times  (Female, 26-30, Asian- 
Barts Voices Project – Stifford Centre,  Maternity ward) 

 
6.20. As well as experiencing more negative attitudes, patients also complained of 

feeling that they were being ‘rushed’ in and out of appointments and this 
appeared to be the case both in primary and secondary provision: 

 Some doctors are ok and give you time, but some always try to get rid of you… 
(Male, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit, Harford Health Centre) 

 
 I thought the doctors were rushing and so therefore didn’t explain things to 

me well or check me thoroughly (Male, 26-30, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices 
Project, CBSG)  

 
6.21. Perhaps more importantly, was the need to consult patients and to speak to and 

act towards them with appropriate respect. Thus, for example, using correct 
nomenclature or asking them whether they minded a student attending the 
observation before the student comes into the room. And as this young man 
explained: 

 For improvements I would suggest staff need to be trained regularly to have 
better and developed interpersonal skills and empathy so they can relate to 
the patients and not behave unprofessionally towards them (Male, 22-25, 
Bangladeshi, Barts Voices Project, CBSG) 

 
 My GP referred me to Mile End hospital for an x-ray. I visited the hospital in 

June this year. The staff I believe were not polite at all, they were too rude to 
me and their attitude was appalling. The radiographer told me to change into 
the gown provided. When I had come back the radiographer behaved very 
rudely towards me. In a very aggressive manner he said “don’t you understand 
what I had told you, you have to remove your vest aswell”. I replied correcting 

Page 102



 
 

19 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

him that he had not told me to do so, but despite so I went to remove my vest.  
The radiographer was not very cooperative either. I strongly feel a number of 
improvements will need to be made to the service so people get better care. 
Also to treat all patients fairly and not rudely because they may not 
understand or speak fluent English – they need to be patient and at the same 
time polite (Male, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, CBSG) 

 
6.22. And this could be especially galling for those with special needs: 

 I have explained to the receptionist (at Bethnal Green Medical Mission 
Practice) that I wish to register with the surgery. The receptionist was rather 
awkward towards me for some reason. I tried to make effort to communicate 
with receptionist but the receptionist was being difficult. I tried to have eye 
contact with her but she did not even acknowledge me. The receptionist was 
asking for my proof of address so I showed my bank statement with the 
address to the receptionist. The receptionist was rather rude as she was 
looking at my balance. I felt offended and I snatched the statement off from 
her. I decided that I had enough with the receptionist’s attitude and walked 
out from the surgery. I asked the Deaf Plus advocacy to deal with it. The 
advocacy called the practice for me and explained the situation. The 
receptionist stereotyped me as deaf and DUMB service user. The advocacy has 
explained that DUMB term do not exist anymore in modern days (Female, 
White Other – Barts Voices – Deaf Plus) 

 
 I got an appointment with my GP and was expected to have British Sign 

Language interpreter for the appointment. Unfortunately BSL interpreter 
failed to turn up and I was stressed about it as I knew that I cannot 
communicate with GP without BSL interpreter. So the appointment was 
postponed to another date which it was not helpful at all. I felt that it was 
not fair…Why should I suffer from this while hearing people easily see GP 
without any problems? (Female, White British – Barts Voices Project – Deaf 
Plus) 

 
 I am constantly frustrated when arriving at the Royal London to be told that I 

need to go “that way”, when I am carrying a white stick (Barts Voices Project, 
ELVIS) 

 
 There seems to be no mechanism for one department or service that knows I 

have a sight problem to pass this on to another. This was both the case within 
different clinics within the hospital and then when I was discharged but 
needed to see a District Nurse for a while  (Barts Voices Project, ELVIS) 

 
 I was very concerned when visiting the diabetes clinic at the Mile End hospital. 

They advised me what I should and shouldn’t eat and then gave me a printed 
sheet of information, which of course I couldn’t read. I therefore did my best, 
but it was guesswork (Barts Voices Project, ELVIS) 

 
6.23. From the data, too, it seemed that clear communication between doctor and 

patient was an essential component of the patient journey. 

 The doctor was very consistent and thorough in checking me over. She was also 
very helpful and friendly. The staff were also very informative which I found a 

Page 103



 
 

20 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

delight as I felt I was getting all the right information on my treatment which 
in turn made me less anxious and confused  (Female, 51-59, Bangladeshi – Barts 
Voices Project, CBSG)  

 
6.24. Certainly the lack of interpreting facilities was again an issue for many and often 

exacerbated stress and/or medical conditions. 

 My English isn’t very good so sometimes I feel I need an interpreter to help me 
explain my problems well to the GP so that the doctor gets a better 
understanding of why I came however there are hardly any interpreters 
available when I call in and ask and they often say the next suitable 
appointment with where an interpreter will be available is in two weeks or so. 
This really annoys me because I feel there’s no point coming after 2 weeks 
when I am suffering at the moment. The receptionist also says that if I feel 
worse I should go into A&E and this also disappoints me because GPs are 
supposed to be your first point of contact that you’re supposed to be easily 
accessible to. (Male, 51-59, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices LWA) 

 
 I need to highlight this as I feel like it is dangerous practice, when I was taken 

in for a procedure ‘Gastroscopy’, they told me in visually and pointing to parts 
of mouth what they will do, although I can’t speak English and I can 
understand very little, they did not inform my husband nor did they get an 
interpreter to explain the procedure, they made me sign and did not explain 
any risks. I’m extremely angry about this. I had another procedure done, I 
can’t remember the name and the same thing, nobody explained what it was 
and risk involved. This is dangerous practice (Female, 26,30, Bangladeshi- 
Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre)   

 
 When my daughter spoke to the staff in A&E, they didn’t want to explain to 

her much, but my daughter wanted to know exactly what’s going on, the nurse 
didn’t want to explain, I think if your treating a patient who doesn’t 
understand the language then it’s vital for the person treating to explain to 
their next of kin what is going on  (Female, 51-59, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices 
Project, Stifford Centre) 

 
6.25. A substantial amount of spontaneous comments concentrated upon the 

environment of hospitals and in particular waiting areas. Some complained of 
the size and the lack of refreshments, seats and of space more generally. 
Others  felt that since they were spending a good deal of time in there with all 
the endless waiting there could be a good many improvements: 

 The waiting area in the Renal Department is very small. Many people who are 
on dialysis are wheelchair bound so sometimes I feel there is no space for 
everyone in the waiting area. I particularly feel this is the case for people in 
wheelchairs. I would like to see more health information in the waiting are on 
how to look after your kidneys, what to eat and what not to. Maybe also some 
general information, magazines and even a TV to keep us entertained if 
patients are expected to wait 45 minutes. (Female, 41-45, Bangladeshi – Barts 
Voices Project – SAfH) 

 

Page 104



 
 

21 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 Hot drinks and sandwiches in A&E would also make things easier for patients 
and those that accompany them (Female, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices 
Project – Stifford Centre)  

 
6.26. Poor signage additionally caused patients consternation 

 After visiting a friend who has recently given birth, I found making my way to 
her very difficult and confusing, the halls seem to go on and on, there doesn’t 
seem to be any clear signs directing me to her floor let alone what room she 
was in, I could not find a member of staff nearby and all the information desks 
seemed to be empty. After calling her again, she had a nurse who was next to 
her that was very helpful and was able to give me directions and tell me which 
lift I needed to get and where from and only then did I finally find her after 30 
minutes in the hospital (Female, 26-30, White British – Barts  Voices Project, 
Stifford Centre)  

 
 When getting to the hospital I felt very confused I didn’t understand any signs. 

In the old building there was talking signage that was very convenient to use 
to find where to go in my language. The new building had better facilities but 
it was like you had to go around the building department seemed very far 
away. I didn’t understand the lifts were very confusing different department 
different lifts type outside buttons it’s just too much changes. Even my 
daughter who is born in this country found it absolutely horrendous (Female, 
51-59, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre)  

 
 However my greatest issues are the lifts, finding my around the hospital I just 

don’t understand it. It makes me really frustrated and angry. I had to take a 
member of my family with me sometimes it is not convenient for them to 
come with me so I have to cancel my appointment. There is no support for 
translation or people to ask to guide or to support me at the hospital (Female 
51-59, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project - Stifford Centre) 

 
6.27. GPs and Dentists – Specific Issues 

 
6.27.1. As has been noted, many of the issues detailed above cut across service 

provision including GP provision.  However, there were one or two issues that 
appeared to be unique to GPs.  In the first place, the fact that GPs were 
generalists and, for the most part, not specialist, seemed to have had 
implications for some patients: 

 However I think my GP practice (XX place) is not really fussed about my 
diabetes...sometimes I feel unwell and it could be diabetes related, but it’s 
so difficult to get an appointment there...the receptionist don’t seem to be 
bothered about the type of illness  I have, for them everyone is the same. 
(Healthwatchsignposting phone call) 

 
6.27.2. Given this, it is interesting that there was evidence of patients needing  

services that were more ‘holistic’, furthering their generalist approach: 

 I think they should have one doctor for emergencies only, and also it would 
be nice to have someone to talk to about general concerns regarding health, 
like a councillor (Female, 51-59, White British – Enter and View visit, Wapping 
Health Centre) 

Page 105



 
 

22 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 
6.27.3. A striking feature of the nature of the comments over the past year was, as 

has been noted in the Executive Summary, that patients tended not to 
concentrate on concerns or issues about their care per se. Instead they 
tended to concentrate on issues surrounding or linked to their care as detailed 
above.  It was notable, therefore, that patients did tend to comment on the 
care they had received from dentists and, occasionally, GPs: 

 I’ve been coming here for around 9 years, they offer quick appointments and 
really look after you...even though I am on benefit, I feel they do not 
discriminate against me and provide me the best care and service. I have a 
great relationship with my dentist, she is very friendly and provides good 
treatment, she even goes the extra mile to keep me happy, for example she 
cleaned my teeth today, even though I am here for other reasons- which I am 
really happy about. The people in this dentist are like family, they are all 
very warm and friendly (Male, 22-25, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit – 
Abbey Dental Practice) 

 
 This is my fifth visit to this dentist, today I am here for my six month check 

up, and I originally came here by family recommendation. The dentist is very 
good; they explain diagnosis and treatment properly and always answer any 
questions I have. They also explained the charges properly and I understand 
what I am entitled to.  The staff are friendly and polite and I am very happy 
with the service I get here. Inside the dentist the surrounding and decoration 
looks nice and clean (Male, 22-25, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit – 
Whitechapel Dental Practice)  

 
6.27.4. Interestingly, in both dental and GP provision, confidentiality seemed to be an 

issue: 

 I also feel that there is lack of privacy as the waiting area is small and 
treatment doors tend to be left open i.e. you can hear conversations and 
treatments (Female, 41-45, White Other – Enter and View visit, Whitechapel 
Dental Practice) 

 
I do have issues with some of the reception staff and also the lack of privacy 
at reception, People behind can hear clearly your discussions with reception 
staff (Female, 36-40, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit – Harford Health 
Centre) 

 
6.27.5. In addition, there appeared to be an issue for patients who wished to complain: 
 And also the complaints procedure with the NHS is really complicated, so I 

didn’t bother putting in a complaint about the other practice (Female, 31-35, 
White British – Enter and  View visit – Wapping Health Centre) 

 
6.27.6. Finally, Healthwatch additionally carried out an Enter and View visit to Health 

E1, a GP practice in Tower Hamlets,that caters for the ‘homeless’ and often 
those with complex needs. In this instance, there was, on the whole, praise for 
the surgery: 

I was referred to Health E1 through Dellow Centre. It is easy to get an 
appointment, I am usually seen on the same day .I think the service is really 

Page 106



 
 

23 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

good and the staff are really good at dealing with problematic patients. I’m 
usually seen quite quickly, usually within the space of 15 -20 minutes and I am 
always treated with respect and dignity. Health E1 staff are very good in how 
they treat their patients. They have a non-judgmental attitude and treat 
everyone with respect, no matter what the issues is. Overall it is a good 
service and I have no suggestions to improving this service (Male, 36-40, White 
British - Enter and View visit, Health E1) 

 
6.27.7. Long waiting times also did not appear to have the impact as they did on 

patients attending other surgeries: 

The hostel I was staying in referred me to Health E1; I have been here 3 times 
in the last year. The walk in service is very good but it usually takes a long 
time before you are seen by a doctor; however the doctors are good, so far my 
experience has been good and I don’t have any suggestions for improving the 
service (Male, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Enter and  View visit - Health E1)  

 
It’s the only GP practice around here for homeless people, I come here every 
fortnight to see a GP, and they make regular appointments for me. (XXX) is 
friendly and helpful, (XXX) is also very good, the doctors and nurses here treat 
you with dignity and give you respect.  Sometimes you have to wait a long 
time if you use the walk in service, but I am very happy with the service I get 
here (Enter and View visit – E1 Health Centre) 

 
6.27.8. Even for those who had left the borough, it remained the place to go: 

It’s a very good service; you can be seen anytime… I have been coming here for 
the past 15 months and I was referred here by the Dellow Centre, one day I 
was not feeling well and asked the staff at the Dellow Centre if anyone could 
help and they told me about this place. When you come in the morning walk in 
sessions you tend to wait a long time, but I don’t mind waiting as I always get 
to see a doctor.  I have now moved out of this borough, I am now living in 
Newham in sheltered accommodation, but I like this place and still come here 
as I like the doctors because they are caring and friendly and also it’s flexible 
as I can see a doctor anytime (Male, 26-30, African – Enter and View visit, E1 
Health)  

 
6.27.9. There was also  a request for greater provision: 

 I have one suggestion; I think it would be beneficial to have more afternoon 
walk in sessions (Male, 26-30, African – Enter and View visit, E1 Health) 

 
 In terms of improving service I would suggest they have longer walk-in clinic 

opening times (Male, 36-40, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit, Health E1) 
 
 It would be great if they can open on Saturdays, there is nothing for homeless 

people in the weekends (Enter and View visit – E1 Health) 
 
6.28. Mental Health Provision – Specific issues 
 
6.28.1. For a number of patients with mental health issues, the process of finding 

suitable support could be daunting: 

Page 107



 
 

24 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 Initially accessing Crisis House was difficult, I had to go to A&E, then hospital, 
then got discharged  and then Home Treatment Team referred me to the Crisis 
House, I feel this place should be promoted more, its better coming here in 
the first instance then going through the whole process of being admitted to 
hospital. When I was admitted to hospital last year I was new to the borough, 
coming here has allowed me to learn about other services available in this 
community (Male, 41-45, White British – Enter and  View visit – Crisis House) 

 
6.28.2. However, once provided with appropriate support there was often only praise: 

 This place was great for me; it gave me the anchor to move back into the 
community and believe in myself and helped build my self esteem. It’s also a 
safe place and socialising with other tenants helped me to be relaxed and get 
support from peers.  Staff always take an interest in you and they also did not 
judge me based on my life history and what I had done. When I came here I 
felt people believed me and this made a real difference, I felt people trusted 
me and I could trust people back. Being active was a key part in my recovery, 
staff here got me involved with other community groups such as the Bromley 
by Bow Centre, I got involved with Bromley by Bow Centres time banking and 
gardening projects. Whilst I was staying here, every third day I would get to 
see my key worker to review my goals, setting little goals was very good as you 
felt like you achieved something; this helped to strategise and get back on my 
feet. Even after being discharged they provided me with on- going support for 
about two weeks and called me every day to see how I was doing and even 
after being technically discharged the staff supported me with getting access 
to see my daughter.  Currently I am involved with Look Ahead as a ‘peer 
mentor’, I have been involved with the recruitment of staff members 
(interview panel) and also deliver training to Look Ahead staff on mental 
health and also delivered presentations to other Crisis Houses in other areas. 
This place has been like an ‘Angel’, it has been my saviour (Male, 41-45, White 
British – Enter and  View visit – Crisis House) 

 
6.28.3. Overwhelmingly, however, there appeared to be support for the benefits of 

social interaction for those with mental health issues: 

 I like it here you get to socialise with other Bangladeshi people, being here 
makes me feel happy and I feel that I am not on my own (less isolated), we go 
to the parks for walk and take part in yoga, also the new ‘Fitness Group’ is 
also very good as it helps to keep me healthy (Male, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Enter 
and View Visit, Pritchard’s Row, Day Centre) 

 
 Before coming here I use to sit at home and feel angry, agitated and also 

lonely, since coming here (5 months now) I feel a lot happier mentally because 
I am able to socialise with other men from my community and also take part in 
activities.  (XXX) is very friendly, he encourages us to take part in activities, 
organises activities for us and also talks about what is happening around the 
world (news) (Male, 51-59, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit – Pritchard’s Row 
Day Centre) 

 

6.28.4. And there was a strong call for more sessions and particularly at times when 
service users might most need them. Cutbacks too were a concern.  

Page 108



 
 

25 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 There should be a ‘drop in’ at the weekend for when some of us are unwell 
and want to socialise with other people. It’s somewhere to go and it is better 
than having to go to A&E. I would like to see more Drop Ins, the compulsory 
activities are too rigid; can do with more flexibility for when people are 
unwell. Sometimes feel that I am being forced and pressured to join a group 
activity when I do not want to. The place keeps people safe. It makes me feels 
better. Prevention is better that cure.  Everyone welcomes you and there is a 
family feel to it; that is why I have been coming here for last 16 years.  The 
staffs are doing an especially good job.  This place provides a safe place for 
me when I feel frightened of the world (Female, 46-50, White British – Enter 
and View visit, Pritchard’s Row Day Centre) 

 
 I like the Somali Group, we make food, eat together have group 

discussions…it’s a nice place, I am very happy and I feel much better coming 
here. The staff are very caring and very helpful…we are very happy here. I like 
the new activities; I think this place is better than before… I would like this 
place to be open in the evenings and also weekends and it would be great if we 
can have the Somali group session available more days of the week (Male, 51-
59, Somali – Enter and View visit, MIND in Tower Hamlets and Newham) 

 
6.28.5. The classes offered and the benefits accrued also tended to be very much 

appreciated  

 I take part in a lot of activities here; I have been to trips and take part in 
exercise classes. I have also taken a course in basic computing and been a 
volunteer at the Tea Bar (Male, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit – 
Pritchard’s Row Day Centre) 

 I like the service here, they always try to help you for example if I am feeling 
down they arrange a counsellor to see me. Before I use to come here Monday 
to Friday, now you have to sign up to an activity to attend. I like coming to the 
groups, I think the activities are good as it gives us options to do things, 
before we use to do nothing, now they are encouraging us to use our mind 
(Male, 41-45, Somali – Enter and View visit, MIND in Newham and Tower 
Hamlets) 

 
6.28.6. But there was some concern that service users were not consulted adequately  

 I have also noticed that a lot of people want to socialise and they like the 
drop-ins and they don’t want to participate in activities, I guess this could be 
the reason why some people are no longer attending…anyway I think the group 
activities should be based on what service users want to do, they should be 
involved in the decision making. In regards to the current activities people 
were told that they was going to implement the activities and that was 
that…it would have been useful to ask people what they wanted to do then 
come up with a activity timetable.. (Female, 22-25, White British – Enter and 
View visit – MIND in Newham and Tower Hamlets) 

 
 I think Mind is very helpful, and the staff are very helpful. I like the Music 

Therapy Group, it’s very good as I find it therapeutic…the new programme is 
helpful, it would be better if they could ask users what should be 
included...also I would like more drop-in sessions (Male, 31-35, African – Enter 
and View visit – MIND in Newham and Tower Hamlets) 

Page 109



 
 

26 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 
6.28.7. However, the majority of comments about the staff were notably 

complimentary  

 (XXX) is my key worker, I get to see her at least twice a week, she is very 
helpful, she helps me with filling up forms, helps with my housing and 
benefits problems…I like the staff here, they talk to me and give me time 
(Male, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit, MIND in Tower Hamlets and 
Newham) 

 
 I have been coming here for over 20 years; I was referred by my psychiatrist. I 

have received excellent support and could not do without my link worker. The 
present staff are very engaging, they make time for me and everybody, they 
are the best team that I have come across and they have done more for me 
than my CPN or Social Worker. Here is the only stable place where I can feel 
safe, the staff and users make me feel that I belong and am part of a family. I 
need to go somewhere every day to make friends and socialise and staying 
home makes me ill. I do not know what I would do if I did not have this place 
to come to. I am lucky that I have a partner but most people live on their own. 
This place is heaven to me. Staff do not force you to do group activity if you 
feel unwell (Male, 31-35, Bangladeshi – Enter and View visit, Pritchard’s Day 
Centre) 

 
6.28.8. And it was noted when staff had made a particular effort 

 I feel pressured to join the group activity when I do not want to because I am 
unwell. It takes the staff a while before they understand what you are going 
through and then it is fine (Male,51-59, White British – Enter and View visit, 
Pritchard’s Row Day Centre) 

 
6.28.9. On the other hand, some felt that the support given by the staff was slightly 

double edged:  

 I am happy to participate in the group activities but sometimes staff pressure 
me to take part and I feel like I am in a Nursery. They talk to me like I am a 
child and I do not like that. It could be thier way of encouragement. I cannot 
explain. Before I started coming here, I did not want to go out of my home. 
The one to one support which I received has helped with my recovery. The 
users and staff are very welcoming (Female, 46-50, White British – Enter and 
View visit, Pritchard’s Row Day Centre)  

 
6.28.10. There appeared to be a further concern about the lack of staff: 

 I also feel that there is not enough staff to integrate with users and sometimes 
it can feel there is lack of staff presence…the staff that are here, they always 
try their best and always try to support you and I feel they represent us well 
in the service user forum (Female, 51-59, White British – Enter and Visit, 
Pritchard’s Row Day Centre) 

 
 There needs to be more staff to talk to users, general staff engagement with 

service users is important as they can help service users feel better…just 
having someone to talk to is important, now you have to make an appointment 
to talk to someone. I use to like the drop in service, if you feel unwell you can 
have the opportunity to go somewhere and socialise for a while. I would 

Page 110



 
 

27 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

suggest that we have more drop-in sessions. I groups activities can be great, 
but they need to have more interaction as sometimes you don’t know the 
people attending the groups. .... Currently the whole place is dead…some 
people live a long way and coming down for an hour is not enough, you want to 
come for at least half a day… also if you participate in activity in the morning 
and also want to participate in a activity in the afternoon, you are told to 
come back…this is not possible if you live far away or in the mean time where 
do you go? It seems unreasonable…I feel there needs to be a balance of both, 
socialising as well as activities, but they need to be practical about it. Before I 
use come here almost every day, now it 1 or 2 days, this is making me feel 
depressed as I am not socialising as much. The current programme does not 
meet my needs and also it seems they just appeared, there was no 
engagement with user, I feel staff have not listened to users in this regards 
and I also feel funders needs don’t meet our needs. Evening drop-ins are great, 
however I feel there needs to be more staff on duty, as currently I feel it is 
not a safe environment  (Male, 41-45, African – Enter and  View visit, MIND in 
Newham and Tower Hamlets) 

7. OLDER PEOPLE 

7.1. Many of the issues raised by the younger age groups were of course areas of 
concerns for older people except that they tended to be exacerbated given 
their stage of life and possible co-morbidities.  For these two respondents, for 
example, the effects of poor communication were unquestionably significant. 

 
I went to Mile End Hospital for my appointment at 9am as my son dropped me 
off. When I got there I was told that I had come to the wrong hospital and my 
appointment was for RLH as it had been moved there. I was really angry as the 
letter did not specify which hospital to go to and I didn’t know the eye clinic 
has been moved. In the future if certain services are being moved I would like 
to be notified as a pensioner who has been going to a certain service for a long 
time I assumed it will be at Mile End Hospital (Male, 76-80. Bangladeshi – Barts 
Voices Project, Stifford Centre) 
 
Recently I received a letter to have my eyes tested, usually it is in Mile End 
Hospital, I went all the way to the hospital for my 9.30 appointment on a 
Friday, when I got there they said they cannot see me as it is has moved to 
London Hospital and I need to go there. They were very were very adamant 
they cannot see me, so I travelled all the way to London Hospital. When I got 
there, they saw me but said they could have seen me at Mile End too. In the 
future when changes are made to departments that patients have been going 
to for years, they should write to us and inform us that the diabetic eye clinic 
has moved to Whitechapel so people like me who are not able to read English 
that well will have taken a note beforehand (Male, 76-80. Bangladeshi – Barts 
Voices Project, Stifford Centre) 

 
7.2. There was also evidence of a lack of support for the older age group so that 

when, for example, diagnosis was perceived to be slow, patients could be left 
feeling particularly distressed 

 

Page 111



 
 

28 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

Due to the pain in my chest I went to my local GP several times hoping to 
understand what is causing it. I was diagnosed with having gallstones. I was 
told that I will need to undergo an operation to remove the gallstone and I was 
referred to the hospital where I had my operation. I then started experiencing 
very strong abdominal pains and went to my GP again. I was told that the 
gallstone  may have still remained and that is what is causing the pain. I was 
told that I may require further operation. I feel very distressed due to the 
doctors failing to find what was wrong with me and they were not very 
certain. Furthermore I I had gone through an endoscopy and various other 
tests which was also very stressful for me (Female, 71-75, Bangladeshi, Barts 
Voices Project, LWA) 

 
7.3. In addition, a strong sentiment was expressed that more time should be 

allocated to older patients almost to counteract the feeling of uncertainty and 
vulnerability  

 
I feel the doctor doesn’t give enough time to patient because of time limit so 
as a suggestion of area of improvement I think the appointment slots need to 
be flexible enough to meet each patient’s requirements. Appropriate times 
with patients will allow sooner diagnoses to be made. Also I have come across 
the fact that many GPs just simply prescribe medication but they don’t explain 
the disease itself and to how to take the medicine, the side effects and I think 
it is crucial that the patient knows more about the medication he or she is 
taking. This should not be left with the pharmacists and the GPs can’t be 
completely certain that the pharmacist will explain to the patient (Male, 
Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, CBSG) 

 
7.4. Again, too, were the difficulties of obtaining appointments, particularly at the 

London Chest Hospital, as well as the seemingly endless waiting once at the 
appointment: 

 
Arranging an appointment nowadays is very hard and it often takes two to 
three months of waiting for the next hospital appointment (Male, Bangladeshi 
– Barts Voices Project, CBSG) 
 
Around three months ago I was told by the podiatrist at Wapping that I needed 
to have an assessment at Mile End Hospital and that they would send a letter 
confirming the appointments, however I never received any letters, so I tried 
on several occasion to call the foot clinic at Mile End and never managed to 
get through on the phone, after months of trying I finally managed to get 
through yesterday and they gave me an appointment for today. I would 
suggest that they pay a bit more attention to answering phone calls (Male, 
80+, White British – Enter and View visit, Foot Health Clinic) 
 
Having been seen by my GP I was referred to the Royal London hospital 
regarding my heart problem. It was difficult for me to get an appointment and 
the delayed appointment meant an adverse affect on health. The support I 
received was not bad but for follow up treatment I found myself having to 
phone and ask them questions on my medication rather than the doctor calling 
me (Male, 60-65, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, LWA) 

Page 112



 
 

29 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 
7.5. And delayed appointments were of particular concern 

 
We waited 3 months for the appointment but would have appreciated it 
sooner as the appointment was for a sensitive issue.  My mum was referred by 
the dentist as the dentist thought it may be mouth cancer.  My concern was 
that if that was the case than she should have been seen sooner rather than 
later (Female, 60-65. Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, SAfH – Dental 
Hospital)  
 

7.6. Finding their way around the hospital was nigh impossible for some and added to 
the difficulties encountered: 

 
It’s a big hospital and I feel like if I don’t take someone with me I can get lost 
in the big empty corridors.  I think more helpers, clear signs and directions 
should help people who don’t always have someone to take them to 
appointments (Female, 60-65, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, SAfH – Heart 
Clinic, RLH) 

 
7.7. Certainly the behaviour of the staff for this age group was particularly 

noticeable and seemed to be an issue across provision.  
 

Some of the nurses are really nice and helpful – I found them to have passion 
and willingness to ‘care’ for patients. Whereas other nurses walk around and 
behave like they are superior to us – majority are the ones with a lead role!!! 
However, I’d like to say not all nurses are like that!! The nurses are less 
friendly with people language difficulties too – I found that quite disturbing…. 
Patients are unable to express their needs anyway and to have nurses who 
aren’t caring or willing to care is hard on top of it.  The level of care has gone 
down compared to a few years ago, and the negligence of nurses is high (Male, 
66-70, Bangladeshi – Barts Voice Project – Stifford Centre) 
 
My father-in-law had had several strokes before and when he had his final 
stroke we took him straight to A&E. All the care we received there was good. 
The doctors were efficient and informed us of what they were doing and if it 
didn’t work what they would do next. When we went to the Intensive Care 
unit, the care there was very different. We felt that none of the nurses had 
time for us. We also found their attitudes to be very rude. We understand that 
nurses were very limited and are busy but there is absolutely no need to be 
rude to relatives who are already suffering and grieving. I called nurses 
several times and they told me to give them a few moments but they 
disappeared after that. They should have at least come over and listen to 
what our needs were before deciding to dismiss us as a low priority case. This 
attitude really got to me and unfortunately I took it all out on the doctors 
that came to see us during their rounds. But the doctors were very empathetic 
towards us and showed some emotions to the fact that we had been there with 
my father-in-law and had spent more than 24 hours. I think that nurses should 
be given training on manners and how to talk and treat people who are 
already stressed with their loved ones. Their rudeness and harsh attitudes just 
add to the problem and further stress people out. If nurses are not committed 

Page 113



 
 

30 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

to their jobs and don’t want to be polite to patients they should be forced out 
as they aren’t fulfilling their job roles (Male, 71-75, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices 
Project, SAfH) 
 

7.8. And many seemed to feel rebuffed by the behaviour of reception staff: 
 
I went to have my first ever breast screen in June 2014. The receptionist 
looked like she didn’t want to be at work, there was no hello, all she said was 
‘take a seat’. The waiting area was dull, there was no water available. I 
waited for 40 mins after my appointment time and when I got called, all the 
nurse said was, ‘Take off your upper clothing and come and stand here’, no 
explanation of what was going and what she will do. I had to ask my daughter 
to ask what are they going to do, even then the nurse said, ‘your mother needs 
to stand here and I will use the machine to screen her breast’. I would like for 
the waiting area to have water available and for the staff to explain what the 
procedure and steps are. The receptionist should want to be at work (Female, 
60-65, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre) 

 
7.9. Some, too, appeared to have experienced simple neglect.  During the Barts 

Voices Project, THFN discovered the case of one woman in her seventies who 
reported that given her incontinence problems she had wet her bed but was 
left to ‘lie in it for ages’ and when the staff came to clean her, they scalded 
her with the hot water.  The family have made a formal complaint but have 
had no reply. Other respondents reported the following 

 
The level of care varies throughout the day – during visiting hours, nurses are 
on their feet running around trying to tend to every patient. BUT after hours, 
it’s different. My children have often expressed their feelings of sadness and 
distraught to be witnessing these situations. Patients are left unattended, 
with their soiled nappies… these patients are calling for assistance, but nurses 
aren’t around. The nurses are less friendly with people language difficulties 
too – I found that quite disturbing…. Patients are unable to express their needs 
anyway and to have nurses who aren’t caring or willing to care is hard on top 
of it  (Male, 66-70, Bangladeshi  - Barts Voices Project – Stifford Centre - Cardio 
Department)  
 
Once I was admitted into the hospital the care I received I feel was not good. 
The nurse didn’t take good care of me because the saline syringe which was 
injected in me was kept for 8 days and the nurse forgot to remove it sooner 
and this led to an infection in my hand. (Male, 80+, Bangladeshi- Barts Voices 
Project, LWA) 

 
7.10. Key, too, was the clear need for someone to talk to and the loneliness when 

staff seemed to only ‘do their job’. One woman, in her eighties, complained, 
for example, to THFN that she felt ‘sad’ that nurses did not wish to speak to 
her apart from pleasantries.  Another interviewee in that project commented 
as follows: 

 

Page 114



 
 

31 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

I get a carer to do my shopping but she buys what she likes not what I wanted. 
Why they are called ‘carers’ I do not know. She comes whenever she fancies 
(Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 

 
7.11. That social and health care were almost inseparable for this age group was also 

made very clear by this project.  The lack of cohesion between services was 
(and has been a well-researched area of need) a key issue.  Many for example 
had a myriad of regular appointments to attend 
 
I attend a diabetes clinic and go to my GP for my depression; I go to RLH and 
Barts for my back problems (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 
I have regular hospital visits for eyes, hearing, back pain management, mental 
health clinic, chiropody clinic, pacemaker clinic. I have problems getting to 
the services I need (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 

 
I go to hospital for my problems and the befriender takes me there otherwise I 
would have to cancel them all (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 

 
7.12. Further, the attitude of homecare staff tended to be a prominent feature of 

this. Patients interviewed by THFN complained that carers often only did ‘what 
they had time for’. Hence for one patient with dementia, they would not 
always have time to make the breakfast if for example it had taken too long to 
put on the compression socks  

 
The carers are not caring or understanding; their communication is very 
poor…they ignore me completely and seem more interested to leave as 
soon as they walk in. They are not compassionate and they look at it 
(caring) as a routine. If there were in-house carers from Tower Hamlets it 
would work better; agencies aren’t giving a satisfactory service to 
vulnerable people (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 
I would like my carers to be more talkative (Voices of the Housebound, 
THFN) 
 
I have had several carers in the last few months and they do this their 
own way and they shout if I tell them. There have been times when they 
shout and swear; it frightens me and I get anxious before they come. 
…They just come to do their work and then they sit and play games on 
their mobile phones; (there is) no human contact (Voices of the 
Housebound, THFN) 
 
I would like them (social carers) to treat me like a human being- explain 
what is going on and be helpful towards me…. Nothing is clear (about) 
what they are supposed to do (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 

 
7.13. THFN also discovered that many elderly people were confused by the seemingly 

endless stream of people coming to their home. They described how patients 
could feel they had lost control of their lives which in turn had, in some cases, 
led to a mistrust of health and social care professionals: 

 

Page 115



 
 

32 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

Everyone comes in and out of my home and no-one asks me if it is all right. I 
feel have been tricked into given up my keys (Male, 66-70, White British – Barts 
Voices Project, THFN) 
 
Now I have so many people coming in and out to see me, doctors, nurse, social 
workers, it is getting confusing – they all just tell me what to do (Female, 80+, 
White British – Barts Voices Project, THFN) 

 
7.14. This also had to be counterbalanced by the loneliness that could be experienced 

by this group 
 
It would be nice to have a social club for people who live in the area. I 
would like a social club for history and literature and other interesting 
topics not only for a cup of tea and cakes. We might be elderly but a lot 
of us have tales to tell and have room to learn more and it’s better to 
keep our brain occupied (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 
 
It would be better to have someone…to help me help myself (Voices of 
the Housebound, THFN) 

 
7.15. It was also clear that the lack of interpreting services was especially pertinent 

for this group since it could lead to greater complications  
 
I suffer from bowel cancer. However the doctor doesn’t always prescribe 
medication and advises me to buy them for example vitamins from the local 
pharmacy. Also I can’t speak English very well so I need an interpreter 
however most of the time interpreter is not available and when I speak to 
receptionist on the phone they ask me to bring in a family member. This 
angers me because I cannot take my son or daughter as they as they are not 
free, and not having an interpreter makes it difficult to communicate and 
understand the doctors advice (Male, 60-65, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, 
Stifford Centre) 
 
On my last visit I was seen by an dentist of Indian origin, I could not 
communicate with her as I speak very little English...this was a 
problem...luckily for me the dental nurse could speak Hindi, so I 
communicated with the dentist via her...it would have been useful if I had 
seen a Bengali dentist, as I could explain myself.. It would be useful if these 
things could be taken into consideration when booking appointments, 
especially in the case of elderly non English speaking patients (Male, 60-65, 
Bangladeshi, Enter and View visit – Abbey Dental Practice) 
 

7.16. This of course was perceived to be a particular issue for those with special needs 
and having appropriate interpreters was clearly critical. 

 
The patient explained that she was struggling to communicate with nurses and 
doctors. All the appointments at hospital were never provided with BSL 
Interpreters and meant her friend had to interpret for her but was not 
appropriately qualified.  She explained that she did not get results about her 
heart. She was discharged and was given prescription tablets. She was not 

Page 116



 
 

33 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

given an explanation why she was given those tablets. She did ask for BSL 
interpreter during her stay and the staff took no action on it (Female, 66-70, 
White British – Barts Voices Project – Deaf Plus) 
 
I was having my cataract operation on 21st March. I was already being 
provided with British Sign Language Interpreter for the day. I was being 
prepared to have injections to put me to sleep and I needed assistance from 
BSL interpreter to explain the situation. But BSL interpreter was being 
squeamish and left me alone in the operating theatre. I was panicked and the 
nurse tried to reassure me that it is ok and I was being calm after reassurance. 
After the operation I woke up and found that the BSL interpreter was not in 
the same room with her which I was not happy with as I wanted to 
communicate with the nurse so she had to wait till I was taken back to the 
resting room. I found the BSL interpreter in the resting room. BSL interpreter 
explained that she could not cope with things happening in the operation 
room. I was very angry with her as I felt that she was not fit to be an 
interpreter (76-80, White British – Barts Voices Project – Deaf Plus) 

 
7.17. The difficulties of getting appropriate equipment and aides often seemed to 

make a potentially bad situation worse 
 
I urgently need installation of a level access shower. This was approved in 
2011 but LBTH has dragged their feet and now in 2014 my grant has expired 
and they want me to start the process all over again and wait another three 
years. I need more time on my social care package due to no washing facility 
but my social worker takes no notice (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 
A walk-in shower would definitely change my life and a ground floor flat. I’m 
waiting to join a social group for outings (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 
An electric wheelchair for outdoors and stair lift for indoors: this would help 
me get around more independently (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 
I have a wheelchair and would like someone to wheel me around when I’m 
lonely and the weather is good. I have asked for this so many times but I have 
never got it (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 
 
It is stupid with continence pads, (you’ve) got to order them three weeks prior 
to needing them and at this age you forget (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 

 
7.18. It is further of note that transport provision appeared to remain a large problem 
 

What I do have an issue with is the patient transport system. I know ERS 
medical have recently taken over so are still a relatively new service but their 
time keeping is absolutely preposterous. I live in Roman Road so it takes me 
some time to get to the hospital. If I have an appointment at 10am the 
transport will arrive ten minutes before my appointment so you can imagine 
how late I actually arrive. I’m not at all impressed that they tell me to be 
ready two hours before my appointment time and yet they arrive so late! The 
main concern for me which I would like to see improvements in would be the 
patient transport to run more efficiently. I mean, there have been times 
where I have sat in the discharge lounge for a long time amongst other 
patients waiting to be taken home and can clearly see a row of patient 

Page 117



 
 

34 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

transport vehicles parked outside for ages and not moving-I spend enough time 
in hospitals without having to spend any more time than necessary especially 
when my immune system is very bad so really I should not be exposed to 
sitting around so many patients with all the various viruses and illnesses (60-
65, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, Stifford Centre) 
 

7.19. Indeed, for this group there appeared to be an overall feeling that, given the 
problems encountered, it led to a perception that they were simply being 
dismissed.  Often, it appeared that no-one was taking the appropriate 
responsibility as a volunteer befriender noted below: 

 
I am a female aged 65 and suffer from a disability, diabetes and get frequent 
lung infections. I also have movement restrictions. I regularly visit the Royal 
London Hospital and my local GP practise due to my health conditions. GP 
doesn’t pay any home visits but advises me to go into walk in centres or A&E. 
The Doctor often insists I take my medication and to be discharged when I am 
in hospital- they often claim I have nothing to worry about and will be better 
in a few days. (Female, 60-65. Asian Other, Barts Voices Project, CBSG) 
 
Years ago THFN could phone the council for social support for someone 
and they would send a social worker, but that doesn’t happen now. And 
no one is willing to take responsibility – a social worker will say its 
responsibility of the occupational therapist, who will say it’s the social 
worker, and on and on…. (Voices of the Housebound, THFN) 

 
7.20. Conversely, it was also striking from the evidence that when elderly respondents 

were pleased with the service, it was the above factors that had made the 
critical difference, as the following patients made clear: 

 
We got the ambulance here today; they were very quick and got to me within 
ten minutes of calling- very happy about that. I was at the St Stephens Health 
Centre when I had a serious heart pain whilst waiting to see a doctor, the 
doctors checked me straight away and advised I go to A&E and called the 
ambulance- the staff were great. We got here at 10.15 am and they did tests 
straight away, I am now waiting for the doctor to give me the results. It’s very 
good here, they are attentive and the staff are all very good, so far I have 
been very happy (Male, 80+, White British – Enter and View visit, A&E) 
 
We arrived here at 10.30am, got here by an ambulance; ambulance was very 
quick got to our home with 15 minutes of calling, which we think is great! 
When we arrived here we got seen by a nurse straight away and also had some 
tests done...we are just waiting for the test result at moment. They provide a 
marvellous service here, all the staff are caring and the whole process has 
been excellent so far (71-75, White British – Enter and View visit, A&E) 
 
When we did get seen the medical staffs were fantastic, they explained 
everything to us in detail and made sure we were comfortable with 
everything.  She was given a follow-up appointment the following day-
fantastic!!! (Female, 60-65, Bangladeshi – Barts Voices Project, Dental 
Hospital)  

Page 118



 
 

35 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

 

8. RECOMMENDATIONS 

8.1. General 

8.1.1. Understand the nature of the need for ‘support’ services within provision 
particularly for the elderly and the young 

8.1.2. Develop an understanding of the processes that might dictate experiences 

8.1.3. Develop a greater understanding of ‘expectations’ and the determinants 
within that including demographic factors 

8.1.4. Develop a greater understanding of ‘quality care’ among different cohorts 
of patients and the factors that contribute to ‘good’ care 

8.1.5. Explore and understand the experiences of those groups who appear 
underrepresented in the work to-date e.g. Eastern European groups and 
sub-groups, Somali’s 

 
8.2. Under 5s and Children 

 
8.2.1. Explore how time allocation for appointments could be improved 

8.2.2. Provide clear directions for patients and families possibly in the form of 
leaflets and ensure their effective dissemination  

8.2.3. Explore whether there are adequate more general support services for 
families where there are ill children or children with severe medical issues 
and whether there is adequate signposting to those services 

 

8.3. Young People 
 
8.3.1. Further understand the difficulties that are encountered in the transition 

from child to post-18 

8.3.2. Understand the discrepancies in terms of expectations on the part of both 
the provider and service users 

 
8.4. Adults 

 
8.4.1. Further understand how the ‘adult’ population breaks down into subgroups 

in terms of experiences and perceptions of those experiences and in terms 
of different aspects of the patient journey 

8.4.2. Explore how different aspects of the patient journey could be improved for 
the different subgroups 

 
8.5. Older People 

 
8.5.1. Ensure that the learning from the provider feedback on ‘integrated care’ 

and the Co-ordinated Care Package has been fed back into service provision 

Page 119



 
 

36 

Feedback Summary October 2014 

8.5.2. Ensure feedback is collected from Care Co-ordinators to enable further 
understanding of the key issues for patients 

8.5.3. Improve the way in which home visits by health professionals can best be 
managed for this age group 

8.5.4. Whether the CCG consider that further staff training across the healthcare 
system with reference to the treatment of older people would make a 
marked difference in terms of the perceived lack of time and support, poor 
communication etc 

8.5.5. Understand the mechanisms through which the elderly are able to articulate 
their needs 

8.5.6. Understand the nature of the key ingredients for ‘holistic’ and ‘patient 
centred care’ to be effective 

8.5.7. To what extent lessons can be learnt from present work that is looking at 
the process and implementation of integrated care so that it is applicable 
across social and health care provision 

 

Page 120


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS
	2.1 Barts Health
	Barts AE Report TA 2014 FINAL Draft

	2.2 Tower Hamlets CCG - Update on the community health services procurement and engagement activities planned
	CCG- CHS slides 020315

	2.3 Health watch progress update
	THHW Update and progress report
	HWTH Feedback Summary


